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Z delivers on financial targets, sets agenda for future growth 

Result and dividend 

Z Energy Limited (Z) today posted its first full year result as a listed company, delivering statutory 

Historic Cost Net Profit After Tax (HC NPAT)1 for the year ended 31 March 2014 of $95 million. 

 

Z posted Replacement Cost Operating Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation (including 

gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets), Amortisation and Fair Value movements on interest 

rate derivatives (RC Operating EBITDAF) - the company‟s preferred measure of evaluating business 

performance2 - of $219 million, up from $196 million in the prior year. 

 

The Z Board has decided to pay a fully imputed final cash dividend to shareholders of 14.3 cents 

per share, taking the total for the year to 22 cents per share, which equates to 87 per cent of pro 

forma Replacement Cost Net Profit After Tax (RC NPAT). 

 

Flexibility and managing volatility 

Z Chief Executive Mike Bennetts said the result highlighted the ability of the company to manage 

volatility in different parts of the business and deliver quality earnings. 

 

“We‟ve deliberately and consistently focused our fuel volume and margin strategy on delivering 

value for the loyal customers Z seeks. This strategy has continued to allow Z to increase its share of 

profit from the market and also to manage unexpected impacts such as bottom-of-cycle refining 

margins for extended periods,” he said. 

 

“While being willing to deliberately trade some volume for the sake of better unit margins, Z closed 

the year with market leading positions across petrol and diesel sales with total market share down 

two percentage points from April 2010 when the company was bought.” 

 

Z‟s fuel margin over the year was 17.1 cents per litre, up from 15.8 cents per litre in 2013. Once all 

operating expenses have been met, Z‟s pro forma RC NPAT was 4.2 cents per litre, down from 5.5 

cents per litre in the prior year or up from 3.7 cents per litre if the impact of property sales in 2013 is 

removed.  

 

 

 

                                                           
1  Z‟s statutory NPAT earnings are prepared on an historic cost basis as required by NZ GAAP. Earnings prepared on this basis are subject to 

fluctuations in the value and volume of stock sold over the period due to changes in oil prices, exchange rates and deliveries.  

 

2.  Z‟s replacement cost earnings adjust the cost of sales as if inputs had been procured at the time of sale. For FY14 the replacement cost 

approach to valuing stock sold has resulted in a reduction in cost of goods sold of $8 million. This is not reflected in Z‟s statutory earnings. 

Z‟s management focuses on (and Z provides guidance on) replacement cost operating earnings, which Z considers better reflect the 

underlying trading performance of the business. More information about replacement cost accounting and the difference between 

replacement cost and historic cost earnings is provided at the end of this announcement and in the accompanying presentation pack. 
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Strategy and growth 

Mike Bennetts said Z launched the company‟s second strategy programme in April 2014. The 

strategy will guide the company‟s operations over the next three to five year period and the 

initiatives within it are expected to deliver an additional $40 - $50 million of RC EBITDAF by 2018 on 

top of the company‟s underlying performance. 

 

“The performance we‟ve delivered to date and the way we have run the business has been driven 

by deliberate choices. We are now very much focused on executing the company‟s next strategy 

programme to deliver further customer and shareholder value.” 

 

In the year ended 31 March 2014, Z completed five new retail service stations and rolled out diesel 

pumps on all lanes across the company‟s top 100 sites, as well as „pay at pump‟ at 49 retail sites. 

 

The company‟s next strategy programme will secure growth in fuel volume and non-fuel margin 

through development of new convenience store offers in Z‟s tier one retail operations, the 

construction of approximately five new service stations and three rebuilds of existing sites per 

annum, plus pushing Z‟s food and coffee offer deeper into the network through an extension of 

store refits across the company‟s tier two retail network. 

 

“Z will continue to invest in the most efficient and convenient retail network and in building a brand 

and customer experience that is truly distinctive and consistently delivers value to our customers,” 

said Mike. 

 

“We will also focus on ensuring we are disciplined in our commercial markets, that we are satisfying 

the expectations of our customers and that we are targeting our volume into the channels where 

we are best positioned, such as where we have advantaged terminal and distribution 

infrastructure.” 

 

Commitment to biofuels 

In April, Z announced its commitment to a $21 million investment in a domestic biodiesel production 

facility at Wiri and associated blending infrastructure at Mount Maunganui and Wiri. 

 

Z has already secured agreements from a number of commercial customers to take production 

from the plant which gives the company confidence around the success of the plant. 

 

“We‟ve had very strong interest from our commercial customers for what will be a limited product. 

Our customers are increasingly concerned about climate change and Z‟s biodiesel will be a 

distinctive offer that will allow customers the choice to use a high quality and more sustainable 

transport fuel,” said Mike Bennetts. 

 

It is expected that Z will begin construction of the plant in May, with production due in the first 

quarter of the 2016 financial year. 
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Outlook and guidance 

Mike Bennetts said the company was well positioned to deliver earnings growth through the roll-out 

of the company‟s second strategy programme. 

 

Z‟s guidance for the 2015 financial year is for RC Operating EBITDAF between $220 million and $240 

million. 

 

This guidance factors in the costs associated with the prolonged shutdown at Refining NZ over April  

2014. These costs are extended loss of refining margin, and the increased logistics and product 

costs associated with alternative supply arrangements at short notice. These one-off costs are 

expected to be in the area of $4-6 million. 

 

 

Jonathan Hill: 04 498 0212 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Reconciliation from statutory NPAT to Pro Forma RC Operating EBITDAF  

Net Profit per the statutory financial statements 95 

Share of earnings in Refining NZ from 1 April to 18 August 4 

Net financing income/(expense) from 1 April to 4 July (8) 

Replacement cost of sales adjustment (net of tax) 8 

Taxation 2 

Pro Forma RC net profit after tax 101 

Depreciation and amortisation 39 

Net financing income/(expense) 33 

Other 5 

Taxation (incl tax on COSA) 40 

Share of earnings of associate companies (net of tax) 1 

Pro Forma RC Operating EBITDAF 219 
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Total revenue 4                 3,371              3,558                 3,371                      3,547 

Excise and carbon expense                  (546)              (569)                 (546)                      (569) 

Purchases of crude and product               (2,311)           (2,511)              (2,311)                    (2,511) 

Primary distribution expenses                    (25)                (24)                   (25)                        (24) 

Operating expenses 5                  (281)              (289)                 (281)                      (279) 

Share of earnings of associate companies (net of tax) 13                      (5)                   -                        -                             -   

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation (including 

gains and (losses) on sale of fixed assets), amortisation 

and fair value movements in interest rate derivatives 

(EBITDAF)                    203                165                    208                         164 

Depreciation and amortisation 10,11                    (39)                (39)                   (39)                        (39) 

Impairment 10                        1                   -                          1                           -   

(Loss)/gain on sale of fixed assets                      (4)                  41                     (4)                           41 

Net financing (expense)/income 21                    (25)                    3                   (25)                             3 

(Loss) on interest rate derivatives                      (2)                   -                       (2)  - 

Net profit before taxation                    134                170                    139                         169 

Taxation expense 15                    (39)                (33)                   (39)                        (33) 

Net profit for the year                      95                137                    100                         136 

Net profit attributable to owners of the company                      95                137                    100                         136 

Asset revaluation reserve after tax                    143                   -                      142                           -   

Share of associate other comprehensive income after tax                        1                   -                        -                             -   

Other comprehensive income net of tax                    144                   -                      142                           -   

Total comprehensive income for the year                    239                137                    242                         136 

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the 

company                    239                137                    242                         136 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Group Parent

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Shareholders' equity                    591                597                    597                         593 

Represented by:
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9                    178                115                    178                         114 

Trade, accounts receivable and prepayments 6                    227                961                    229                         966 

Inventories 8                    479                482                    479                         481 

Derivative financial instruments 21                        1                   -                          1                           -   

Assets held for sale                       -                      2                      -                               2 

Total current assets                    885              1,560                    887                      1,563 

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10                    511                311                    506                         306 

Intangible assets 11                      35                  27                      35                           25 

Investments in associates and subsidiaries 13,14                      96                    1                    105                             6 

Derivative financial instruments 21                      12                   -                        12                           -   

Other non current assets                        1                    2                        1                             2 

Other investments                       -                      1                      -                               1 

Deferred tax 15                       -                      4                      -                               3 

Total non current assets                    655                346                    659                         343 

Total assets                 1,540              1,906                 1,546                      1,906 

Current liabilities

Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities 7                    424                824                    424                         828 
Income tax payable 15                      12                    4                      12                             4 

Provisions 16                      11                    4                      11                             4 

Derivative financial instruments 21                        2                    5                        2                             5 

Total current liabilities                    449                837                    449                         841 

Non current liabilities

Other liabilities                      17                  18                      17                           18 

Provisions 16                      21                  24                      21                           24 

Derivative financial instruments 21                      10                   -                        10                           -   

Bonds 20                    430                430                    430                         430 

Deferred tax 15                      22                   -                        22                           -   

Total non current liabilities                    500                472                    500                         472 

Total liabilities                    949              1,309                    949                      1,313 

Net assets                    591                597                    597                         593 

Approved on behalf of the Board on 7 May 2014

Peter Griffiths Abigail Foote

Chairman Director 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

Group Parent
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers                 3,387              3,564                 3,387                      3,469 

Dividends received 13                        1                   -                          1                             1 

Proceeds from insurance recoveries                        2                    3                        2                             3 

Interest received                      24                  30                      24                           30 

                3,414              3,597                 3,414                      3,503 

Cash was disbursed to:

Payments to suppliers and employees               (2,714)           (2,605)              (2,714)                    (2,512) 

Excise and carbon paid                  (546)              (569)                 (546)                      (569) 

Interest paid                    (44)                (28)                   (44)                        (28) 

Taxation paid                    (29)                (28)                   (29)                        (28) 

              (3,333)           (3,230)              (3,333)                    (3,137) 

Net cash inflow from operating activities                      81                367                      81                         366 

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash was provided from:

Proceeds from sale of investments 13,14                        1                    1                        1                             1 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 10                        7                  87                        7                           87 

                       8                  88                        8                           88 

Cash was disbursed to:

Purchase of intangible assets                    (10)                  (5)                   (10)                          (5) 

Purchase of Refining NZ                  (100)                  (2)                 (100)                          (2) 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment                    (63)                (68)                   (63)                        (67) 

                 (173)                (75)                 (173)                        (74) 

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities                  (165)                  13                 (165)                           14 

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash was provided from:

Issue of bonds                       -                  135                      -                           135 

Issue of shares                    422                   -                      422                           -   

Cash from intercompany                    162                   -                      160                           -   

                   584                135                    582                         135 
Cash was disbursed to:

Cash to intercompany                  (324)              (350)                 (322)                      (350) 

Purchase of shares                      (2)                   -                       (2)                           -   

                 (111)                (67)                 (111)                        (67) 

                 (437)              (417)                 (435)                      (417) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities                    147              (282)                    147                      (282) 

Net increase in cash                      63                  98                      63                           98 

Amalgamation of subsidiary                       -                     -                          1                           -   

Cash balances at beginning of year                    115                  17                    114                           16 

Cash at end of year                    178                115                    178                         114 

Reconciliation of net profit for the year to cash flows from 

operating activities

2014 2013 2014 2013
 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Net profit for the year                      95                137                    100                         136 

Adjusted for items not involving cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation                      39                  39                      39                           39 

Impairment                      (1)                   -                       (1)                           -   

Equity accounted earnings and income of associates                        5                   -                        -                             -   

Movement in bad and doubtful debt provisions                        1                    1                        1                             1 

Fair value of derivatives                        2                  (6)                        2                          (6) 

Gain/(loss) on sale of fixed assets                        4                (41)                        4                        (41) 

Other                      (1)                    2                     (1)                          (3) 

Movements in working capital

Change in trade, accounts receivable and prepayments                      14                    4                      14                             4 

Change in inventories                        3                190                        3                         190 

Change in accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities                    (90)                  36                   (90)                           41 

Change in taxation                      10                    5                      10                             5 

Net cash flow from operating activities                      81                367                      81                         366 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Group Parent

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Dividends paid to owners of the company

Group Parent
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

Group - for the year ended 31 March 2014 Capital Retained 

earnings

Employee share 

reserve

Asset 

revaluation 

reserve

 Total equity 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year                    10                  587                          -                         -                     597 

Net profit for the year                    -                      95                          -                         -                       95 

Other comprehensive income                    -                        1                          -                       143                   144 

Disposal of revalued assets                    -                        2                          -                        (2)                      -   

Total comprehensive income for the year                    -                      98                          -                       141                   239 

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:

Change in share capital                  422                    -                            -                         -                     422 

Own shares acquired                    -                      -                           (2)                       -                      (2) 

Dividends to equity holders                    -                 (665)                          -                         -                  (665) 

Total transactions with owners recorded directly in equity                  422               (665)                         (2)                       -                  (245) 

Balance at end of year                  432                    20                         (2)                     141                   591 

Group - for the year ended 31 March 2013 Capital Retained 

earnings

Employee share 

reserve

Asset 

revaluation 

reserve

 Total equity 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year                    10 517                                          -                         -                     527 

Net profit for the year                     -   137                                          -                         -                     137 

Other comprehensive income                     -   -                                          -                         -                        -   

Total comprehensive income for the year                     -   137                                          -                         -   137                  

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:

Dividends to equity holders                     -   (67)                                          -                         -   (67)                   

Total transactions with owners recorded directly in equity                     -   (67)                                          -                         -   (67)                   

Balance at end of year 10                   587                                          -                         -   597                  

Parent - for the year ended 31 March 2014 Capital Retained 

earnings

Employee share 

reserve

Asset 

revaluation 

reserve

 Total equity 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year                    10                  583                          -                         -                     593 

Net profit for the year                    -                    100                          -                         -                     100 

Other comprehensive income                    -                      -                            -                       142                   142 

Disposal of revalued assets                    -                        2                          -                        (2)                      -   

Total comprehensive income for the year                    -                    102                          -                       140                   242 

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:

Change in share capital                  422                    -                            -                         -                     422 

Amalgamation of subsidiary                    -                        5                          -                         -                         5 

Own shares acquired                    -                      -                            -                         -                        -   

Dividends to equity holders                    -                 (665)                          -                         -                  (665) 

Total transactions with owners recorded directly in equity                  422               (660)                          -                         -                  (238) 

Balance at end of year                  432                    25                          -                       140                   597 

Parent - for the year ended 31 March 2013 Capital Retained 

earnings

Employee share 

reserve

Asset 

revaluation 

reserve

 Total equity 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year                    10                  514                          -                         -                     524 

Net profit for the year                     -                    136                          -                         -                     136 

Other comprehensive income                     -                       -                            -                         -                        -   

Total comprehensive income for the year                     -                    136                          -                         -                     136 

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:

Dividends to equity holders                     -                    (67)                          -                         -                     (67) 

Total transactions with owners recorded directly in equity                     -                    (67)                          -                         -                     (67) 

Balance at end of year                    10                  583                          -                         -                     593 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(1) Basis of accounting

Reporting entity

Basis of preparation

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Associates

Jointly controlled operations

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Z Energy Limited ("the Parent"), is registered in New Zealand under the Companies Act 1993 and is an issuer for the 

purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993. The Parent is party to listing agreements with NZX Limited (NZX) and ASX 

Limited (ASX), with its ordinary shares quoted on the NZX Main Board and ASX and three series of bonds quoted on the NZX 

Debt Market. The Group financial statements of the Parent (referred to as "Z" or "the Group") at, and for the year ended 31 

March 2014 comprise the Parent, its subsidiaries and the Group's interests in associates and jointly controlled operations.

On 19 August 2013, the Parent issued $422 million of new shares on the NZX Main Board and ASX. The cash proceeds from 

the initial public offer were not retained by the Parent and were used to repay intercompany debt and to settle the 

transfer of shares in The New Zealand Refining Company Limited (Refining NZ). 

The Group is primarily involved in the marketing of petroleum based products, is profit orientated and has its operations in 

New Zealand. The address of its registered office is 3 Queens Wharf, Wellington 6011, New Zealand.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

('NZ GAAP') and the Financial Reporting Act 1993.  They comply with the NZ equivalents to International Financial Reporting 

Standards ('NZ IFRS') as appropriate for profit-oriented entities, and with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS').

A list of subsidiaries and associates is shown in notes 13 and 14.  Consistent accounting policies are employed in the 

preparation and presentation of the Group financial statements. Intra-group balances and any unrealised income or 

expenses arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the Group financial statements.

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Parent.  The purchase method of accounting is used 

to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Parent.  Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent 

liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective 

of the extent of any minority interest. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the Group financial 

statements from the date control commences to the date control ceases. 

Associates are entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the operating and financial 

policies.  The Group financial statements include the Group’s share of the net surplus of associates on an equity 

accounted basis from the date significant influence commences to the date significant influence ceases.

Joint operations are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement 

and requiring unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.  The Group financial statements includes 

the Group’s proportionate share line by line.

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of historical cost, except certain financial derivatives which are valued 

in accordance with the accounting policy in note 21 and Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) which is valued in 

accordance with the accounting policy in note 10 Property, Plant and Equipment and  is recorded at fair value.

The functional and reporting currency used in the preparation of the financial statements is New Zealand dollars, 

rounded to the nearest million ($m).  The financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis except 

billed receivables and payables which include GST.
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(2) Changes in accounting policies

Presentational changes

Adoption status of relevant new financial reporting standards and interpretations 

(3) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Provisions

Valuation of investments in associates and subsidiaries

Measurement of fair value

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued, but are not effective for 

application for the year ended 31 March 2014 and have not been early adopted. The adoption of these standards are 

not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for PPE assets and 

liabilities.

For further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values refer to the notes.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of NZ IFRS 13, the Group has applied the new fair value measurement 

guidance prospectively which primarily relates to the measurement of financial instruments and has not provided any 

comparative information for new disclosures. The change had no significant impact on the measurement of the Group's 

assets and liabilities. 

On 1 April 2013 Z adopted a fair value policy for its property, plant and equipment.  At this date all relevant assets have 

been valued by an independent valuer in accordance with the requirements of NZ IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 

and NZ IFRS 13 Fair value measurement.  An assessment of fair value will be performed annually to assess the drivers of 

each asset class to determine whether a further revaluation is required.  At a minimum, a full revaluation will be performed 

every five years.   

Certain amounts in the comparative information have been reclassified to ensure consistency with the current period's 

presentation.  

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 

the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ 

from these estimates.

The principal areas of judgement in preparing these financial statements are set out below.

Liabilities are estimated for the decommissioning and restoration of certain sites of operation. Such estimates are valued at 

the net present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. Key assumptions have been made as to the 

expected amount and timing of expenditure to remediate based on the expected lives of the assets employed on the 

sites, discounted using a market-based risk-free interest rate. 

Management performs an assessment of the carrying value of investments at least annually and considers objective 

evidence for impairment on each investment taking into account observable data on the investment, the fair value, the 

status or context of capital markets, its own view of investment value, and its long term intentions. For more detail refer to 

note 13 and 14. 

Amendments to NZ IAS 36: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2014).

Amendments to NZ IAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (effective for annual periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2014).

Amendments to NZ IFRS 10, NZ IFRS 12 and NZ IAS 27: Investment Entities (effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2014).

NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and measurement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2017).

During the year the Group modified the Statement of Comprehensive Income classification to show Revenue gross with a 

separate Excise and Carbon Expense.  Comparative amounts have also been reclassified for consistency and have 

resulted in a $569m increase in Revenue and  Excise and carbon expense. A corresponding change in presentation has 

also been made in the Statement of Cash Flows which has resulted in a $569m increase in Receipts from customers and 

Excise and Carbon payments in the comparative amounts.  This reclassification has not had any net impact on EBITDAF, 

Net Profit After Tax or on Cash flows from operating activities.
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(4) Revenue

2014 2013 2014 2013
 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Fuel              3,287           3,465                    3,287                    3,454 

Non-Fuel                   59                56                         59                         56 

Chemicals                   25                37                         25                         37 

Total revenue              3,371           3,558                    3,371                    3,547 

(5) Operating expenses 

2014 2013 2014 2013
 $m  $m  $m  $m 

On-site expenses                (46)              (40)                      (46)                      (40) 

Selling commissions                (56)              (59)                      (56)                      (59) 

Secondary distribution                (46)              (47)                      (46)                      (39) 

Employee benefits                (50)              (41)                      (50)                      (39) 

Storage and handling                (18)              (20)                      (18)                      (20) 

Insurance                  (8)                (8)                        (8)                        (8) 

Administration and other expenses                (64)              (64)                      (64)                      (64) 

                    7              (10)                           7                      (10) 

             (281)            (289)                    (281)                    (279) 

Included in Employee benefits are Directors fees of $0.7m (2013: $0.5m).

Included in Administration and other expenses are fees paid to auditors. These include audit and audit related fees of $246,030 

(2013: $168,500) and other services of $520,918 (2013: $420,391). Audit and audit related fees comprise $172,000 (2013: $150,500) 

for the audit and review of financial statements, fees for audit of bank covenants and trustee reporting of $12,000 (2013: 

$12,000), technical accounting opinions of $37,608 (2013: nil), agreed upon procedures for license fee return $6,000 (2013: $6,000) 

and carbon emission reporting review of $18,422 (2013: nil). Other Services comprise tax compliance $6,628 (2013: nil), financial 

model review $14,385 (2013: nil) and continuous improvement initiative $499,905 (2013: $420,391).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the 

Group's activities. Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has supplied products to the customer, the customer has 

accepted the products and the collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. 

Group Parent

Group Parent

Realised/unrealised gains/(losses) on foreign exchange and 

commodity transactions

The Group has recorded Revenue gross with a separate Excise and carbon expense in accordance with the changes referred to 

in note 2.
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(6) Trade, accounts receivable and prepayments

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Trade receivables 211 225 211 225

Provision for doubtful debts (1) (2) (1) (2)

Prepayments 9 5 9 5

Other receivables 8 13 8 13

Intercompany balances (within the group) - - 2 -

Intercompany balances (with ultimate parent group) - 720 - 725

227 961 229 966

(7) Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Accounts payable 397 484 397 488

Accruals and other liabilities 13 15 13 15

Employee benefits payable 14 10 14 10

Intercompany balances (with ultimate parent group) - 315 - 315

424 824 424 828

(8) Inventories

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Raw materials and consumables                   147                 101                 147                      101 

Finished goods/trading products                   332                 381                 332                      380 

                  479                 482                 479                      481 

During the year the write down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to $4m (2013: $1m).  The write down is included 

in ‘purchase of crude and product’. 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Parent

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  The cost of inventories is based on the first-in-first-out principle.  

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling expenses.

Group Parent

Group Parent

Receivables, classified as loans and receivables, are initially recognised at fair value. Thereafter they are measured at 

amortised cost less any provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that 

the Group will not be able to collect the amount due.

Group
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(9) Cash and cash equivalents

(10) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided on a straight line basis.  The major depreciation periods (in years) are:

Buildings                                                                                   10-35                                                   

Plant and machinery                                                                5-35

Land improvements                                                                15-35

Property, plant and equipment - for the year ended 31 March 2014

 Construction in 

progress  Buildings 

 Land and 

Improvements 

 Plant and 

machinery  Total 

March 2014  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Cost/valuation

Balance at beginning of year                       33                     108                     107                     351                     599 

Offset of accumulated depreciation on revaluation                       -                       (80)                     (30)                   (177)                   (287)

Additions                       71                       -                         -                         -                         71 

Disposals                       -                         (1)                       (4)                       (5)                     (10)

Revaluation adjustment                       -                         20                       77                       77                     174 

Transfers between asset classes                     (57)                         5                         4                       43                       (5)

Balance at end of year                       47                       52                     154                     289                     542 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at beginning of year                       -                       (80)                     (30)                   (178)                   (288)

Offset of accumulated depreciation on revaluation                       -                         80                       30                     177                     287 

Depreciation for the year                       -                         (4)                       (1)                     (27)                     (32)

Impairment                       -                         -                         -                           1                         1 

Disposals                       -                         -                         -                         -                         -   

Transfers between asset classes                       -                         -                         -                           1                         1 

Balance at end of year                       -                         (4)                       (1)                     (26)                     (31)

Carrying amounts

At 1 April 2013                       33                       28                       77                     173                     311 

At 31 March 2014                       47                       48                     153                     263                     511 

Group

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks, financial institutions and investments in money market instruments, 

excluding outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Included in buildings $9m and plant and machinery $1m are assets held under finance leases (2013: buildings $1m and plant and 

machinery $1m). 

During the year assets with a cost of $5m and accumulated depreciation of $1m previously classed as Plant and machinery were 

transferred to Intangibles.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item, including: the cost of all materials, direct labour, resource 

management consent costs, and an appropriate portion of variable and fixed overheads. An assessment of fair value will be performed 

annually to assess the drivers of each asset class to determine whether a further revaluation is required. At a minimum, a full revaluation will 

be performed every five years.

The Parent property, plant and equipment balances are equal to Group other than subsidiary land and buildings with a carrying value of 

$5m.
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Property, plant and equipment - for the year ended 31 March 2013

 Construction in 

progress  Buildings 

 Land and 

Improvements 

 Plant and 

machinery  Total 

March 2013  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 
Cost

Balance at beginning of year                       78                     154                     123                     261                     616 
Additions                       65                        -                          -                          -                         65 
Disposals                        -                         (3)                     (29)                     (50)                     (82)
Transfers between asset classes                    (110)                     (43)                       13                     140                        -   

Balance at end of year                       33                     108                     107                     351                     599 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at beginning of year                        -                      (118)                     (32)                    (160)                    (310)
Depreciation for the year                        -                         (3)                       (2)                     (25)                     (30)
Impairment                        -                          -                          -                          -                          -   
Disposals                        -                         41                         4                         7                       52 

Balance at end of year                        -                       (80)                     (30)                    (178)                    (288)

Carrying amounts

At 1 April 2012                       78                       36                       91                     101                     306 
At 31 March 2013                       33                       28                       77                     173                     311 

Measurement of fair value

Level 3 fair value

Valuation techniques

Land is valued using the direct capitalisation 

approach.  This method involves striking a sustainable 

market rental which is capitalised at an appropriate 

rate of return or yield derived from an analysis of sales 

of comparable assets. The market rental is built up 

from:

- fuel throughput margin (adjusted downward for 

loyalty participation rate where a percentage of 

throughput is deemed to be derived from the flybuys 

loyalty scheme) and

- estimated shop rental (for non-fuel sales)

A total value for land and buildings is determined by 

this approach . The value ascribed to the land is then 

the residual value after deducting the building value 

which is determining using the depreciated 

replacement cost approach below.

Buildings, Plant and machinery is valued using the 

depreciated replacement cost approach.  This 

approach is based on the gross current replacement 

cost, reduced by factors providing for age, physical 

depreciation and technical and functional 

obsolescence taking into account an assets total 

estimated useful life and anticipated residual value (if 

any).

Highest and best use

Significant unobservable inputs

Throughput rental rate 

(cents/litre) 1.20 - 1.75 (Retail)

Throughput rental rate 

(cents/litre) 0.70 - 0.80 

(Truckstop) 

Loyalty participation rate 5% - 

15%

Shop rental $150 - $450 per 

square metre

Capitalisation rate 6.50% - 

10.25% 

Cost estimates sourced from: 

Contracting machinery suppliers 

and cost analysis of recent 

projects.

Z holds properties where the current market value in use is lower than the highest and best alternative use, however Z holds these properties 

as part of its strategic network and therefore does not currently intend to change the use of these assets. The assets are recorded at their 

highest and best alternative use valuation.

The estimated fair value would increase 

(decrease) if:

throughput margin were higher (lower);

loyalty participation rate were lower (higher);

shop rental rates were higher (lower);

capitalisation rate were lower (higher).

The estimated fair value would increase 

(decrease) if: cost was higher (lower); remaining 

useful life were higher (lower); technical and 

functional obsolescence were lower (higher).

Inter-relationship between key unobservable 

inputs and fair value measurement

Group

PPE is valued using a level 3 fair value measurement in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels 

during the year.

On 1 April 2013 Z adopted a fair value policy for its property, plant and equipment (PPE).  At this date all relevant assets have been valued by 

an independent valuer in accordance with NZ IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.  An assessment of fair value will be performed annually 

to assess the drivers of each asset class to determine whether a further revaluation is required.  At a minimum, a full revaluation will be 

performed every five years. 

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a valuation team that has 

overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values (the fair value hierarchy is explained in 

Note 21), and reports directly to the CFO and Audit Risk Committee (ARC). 

The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of PPE, as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(11) Intangible assets

Emissions trading scheme

Computer software

Other intangibles

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Intangible assets – emissions units

Balance at beginning of year                       16                         3                       16                         3 

Additions at cost                       46                       64                       46                       64 

Utilised during the year                     (42)                     (51)                     (42)                     (51)

Balance at end of year                       20                       16                       20                       16 

Intangible assets – other

Balance at beginning of year                       11                       14                         9                       12 

Amalgamation of subsidiary                       -                          -                           2                        -   

Additions at cost                       11                         6                       11                         6 

Disposals                       -                          -                         -                          -   

Amortisation for the year                       (7)                       (9)                       (7)                       (9)

Balance at end of year                       15                       11                       15                         9 

Total intangible assets                       35                       27                       35                       25 

(12) Emissions trading scheme

Stock of units

2014 2013

 Units  Units 

 millions  millions 

Balance at beginning of year                         7 7

Plus units acquired and contracted for                         1 2

Units utilised (3) (2)

Balance at end of year                         5 7

Obligation 2014 2013

 Units  Units 

 millions  millions 

Obligation payable at 31 March                         3 3

The Group is required to deliver emission units to a government agency to be able to sell products which emit pollutants. A provision is 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Position and is measured at the average cost of units acquired to satisfy the emission's obligation. 

Group

Units acquired are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment as they are held for settlement of emissions obligations. Currently, 

overseas units have a finite life and NZ units an indefinite life.

Group Parent

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.  

These costs are amortised over three years on a straight line basis.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group that have indefinite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated impairment 

losses. Intangible assets that have a finite life are measured at cost or fair value less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses. Intangible assets with indefinite lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually and whenever 

there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Other intangibles includes software, franchise rights, domain name, and occupation 

rights.
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Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES

(13) Investments in associates

Carrying amounts

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Listed

The New Zealand Refining Company Limited                   95                    -                   100                      -   

Unlisted

Loyalty New Zealand Limited                     1                    -                      -                        -   

New Zealand Oil Services Limited                    -                      -                      -                        -   

Wiri Oil Services Limited                    -                      -                      -                        -   

Penagree Limited                    -                      -                      -                        -   

Coastal Oil Logistics Limited                    -                       1                    -                         1 

                  96                     1                 100                       1 

Movements in carrying amounts

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Carrying amount at beginning of year                     1                     1                     1                       1 

Dividends received / receivable                   (1)                    -                     (1)                      -   

Share of profits from associate                   (5)                    -                      -                        -   

Share of other comprehensive income from associate                     1                    -                      -                        -   

Purchase of investment                 100                    -                   100                      -   

Return of investment                    -                      -                      -                        -   

Carrying amount at end of year                   96                     1                 100                       1 

2014

Ownership

 Principal 

activity  Total assets 

 Total 

liabilities  Income  Profit / (loss) 

 Other 

Comprehensive  

income 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Listed

The New Zealand Refining Company 

Limited 15% Refinery

            1,064                 473                 223                   (5)                     27 

Unlisted

Loyalty New Zealand Limited 25% Marketing                  92                   89                   83                     2                     -   

New Zealand Oil Services Limited 50% Fuel Storage                    7                     7                   45                    -                       -   

Wiri Oil Services Limited 28% Fuel Storage                    2                     2                   16                    -                       -   

Penagree Limited 25% Ship 

Charterer

                 13                   13                     2                    -                       -   

Coastal Oil Logistics Limited 25% Shipping 

Operator

                 13                   11                   52                    -                       -   

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

ParentGroup

 
The Group is considered to have significant influence over its investment in Refining NZ due to the fact that it has representation on the Board 

of Directors and therefore has equity accounted this investment. Based on its closing share price of $1.75 the fair value of the Group's 

investment in The New Zealand Refining Company Limited is $84m (2013: nil).

Summary financial information for equity accounted investments, not adjusted for the percentage ownership held by the Group (all with a 

reporting date of 31 December, except for Loyalty NZ which has a 31 March reporting date):

Group Parent
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2013

Ownership

 Principal 

activity  Total assets 

 Total 

liabilities  Income  Profit / (loss) 

 Other 

Comprehensive  

income 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Unlisted

Loyalty New Zealand Limited 25% Marketing                  91                   90                   83                     2                      -   

New Zealand Oil Services Limited 50% Fuel Storage                    4                     4                   32                    -                        -   

Wiri Oil Services Limited 28% Fuel Storage                    2                     2                   15                    -                        -   

Penagree Limited 25% Ship 

Charterer

                 15                   14                     3                    -                        -   

Coastal Oil Logistics Limited 25% Shipping 

Operator

                 13                   10                   53                    -                        -   

(14) Investment in subsidiaries and joint operations

The significant subsidiaries of the Group and their activities are shown below:

2014 2013 Principal activity

Country of 

incorporation

Subsidiaries

Holding Holding

Mini Fuels & Oils Limited 0% 100% Fuel Distribution New Zealand

Harbour City Property Investments Limited 100% 100% Property New Zealand

Z Energy ESPP Trustee Limited 100% 0% Trustee New Zealand

Z Energy LTI Trustee Limited 100% 0% Trustee New Zealand

2014 2013 Principal activity

Joint Operations

Holding Holding

Joint User Hydrant Installation (JUHI) 25% 25% Fuel Storage

Joint Interplane Fuelling Services (JIFS) 50% 50% Fuel Distribution

Jointly Owned Storage Facility (JOSF) 50% 50% Fuel Storage

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has participating interests in three unincorporated jointly controlled operations relating to the storage and distribution of 

petroleum products.  The revenues and expenses are allocated on a performance/usage basis rather than the share of the joint 

arrangement.  The Group has rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the jointly controlled operations. As at 31 March 

2014 there were no contingent liabilities in respect of the jointly controlled operations. The value of assets in these interests is $9m (2013: $5m).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the Group's financial statements. The financial year-end of all the significant 

subsidiaries is 31 March. From 1 April 2013, Mini Fuels & Oils Limited has been fully amalgamated into the Parent.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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(15) Taxation

Taxation expense is determined as follows:

2014 2013 2014 2013
 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Net profit before taxation              134              170             139             169 

Less share of earnings of associate companies (net of tax)                  5                 -                 -                 -   

Net profit before taxation excluding share of earnings from associates              139              170             139             169 

              (39)               (48)             (39)             (47)

Plus taxation adjustments:

Over provision in prior periods                 -                    3               -                   3 

Non-taxable gain on sale of PPE                 -                  12               -                 12 

Taxation expense               (39)               (33)             (39)             (32)

Comprising:

Current taxation               (44)               (30)             (44)             (30)

Deferred taxation                  5                 (3)                 5               (3)

Taxation expense               (39)               (33)             (39)             (33)

Deferred tax

Group

Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Intangible 

assets

Employee 

benefits

Finance 

Lease

Other 

provisions

Derivative 

financial 

instruments

Other 

items

Total

 $m  $m 
 

$
 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at 1 April 2012                 (2)                  2                 1               -                  1                  3               1             6 

Recognised in the Income Statement                 (6)                 (4)                 1               -                  1                 (1)               5            (4)

Under/(Over) provision in prior periods in the Income Statement                 -                    1               -                 -                 -                   -                 1             2 

Balance at 31 March 2013                 (8)                 (1)                 2               -                  2                  2               7             4 

Balance at 1 April 2013                 (8)                 (1)                 2               -                  2                  2               7             4 

Recognised in the Income Statement                  2                 -                 (1)               -                 -                   (1)               1             1 

Recognised in other comprehensive income               (31)                 -                 -                 -                 -                   -                -            (31)

Under/(Over) provision in prior periods in the Income Statement                  3                 -                 -                   5               -                   -                (4)             4 

Balance at 31 March 2014               (34)                 (1)                 1                 5                2                  1               4          (22)

Parent

Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Intangible 

assets

Employee 

benefits

Finance 

Lease

Other 

provisions

Derivative 

financial 

instruments

Other 

items

Total

 $m  $m   $m  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at 1 April 2012                 (2)                  2                 1               -                  1                  3               1             6 

Recognised in the Income Statement                 (6)                 (4)                 1               -                  1                 (1)               5            (4)

Under/(Over) provision in prior periods in the Income Statement                 -                    1               -                 -                 -                   -                 1             2 

Balance at 31 March 2013                 (8)                 (1)                 2               -                  2                  2               7             4 

Balance at 1 April 2013                 (8)                 (1)                 2               -                  2                  2               7             4 

Recognised in the Income Statement                  2                 -                 (1)               -                 -                   (1)               1             1 

Recognised in other comprehensive income               (31)                 -                 -                 -                 -                   -                -            (31)

Under/(Over)  provision in prior periods in the Income Statement                  3                 -                 -                   5               -                   -                (4)             4 

Balance at 31 March 2014               (34)                 (1)                 1                 5                2                  1               4          (22)

Group Parent

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted 

or substantively enacted at the balance date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Additional income 

taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised at the same time as the liability to pay the related dividend. 

Income tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it relates to items credited or debited directly to other comprehensive income or 

equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Taxation expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 

substantively enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the differences 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are 

not provided for: goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Taxation on profit for the year at the corporate income tax rate of 28% 

(2013: 28%)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on the face of the Statement of Financial Position and presented as a net 

deferred tax asset/(liability).  The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities is provided below:

Imputation credits available for use in subsequent reporting periods are $17m (2013: nil). Upon listing the Parent ceased to be a member of the Aotea Energy Limited 

Imputation Group and the Group's imputation credit balance remained with the Aotea Energy Limited Imputation Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(16) Provisions

For the year ended 31 March 2014
Decommissioning 

and restoration

Remediation  Other  Total 

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year 20 4 4 28

Provisions made 2 1 5 8

Provisions used (1) (1) (1) (3)

Provisions reversed - - - -

Unwind of discount (1) - - (1)

Balance at end of year                                20                          4                          8                        32 

Current                                  4                          1                          6                        11 

Non-current                                16 3                                                 2                        21 

Balance at end of year                                20                          4                          8                        32 

For the year ended 31 March 2013
Decommissioning 

and restoration

Remediation  Other  Total 

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year 21 2 2 25

Provisions made 1 2 4 7

Provisions used (2) - (1) (3)

Provisions reversed - - (1) (1)

Unwind of discount - - - -

Balance at end of year 20 4 4 28

Current 2 - 2 4

Non-current 18 4 2 24

Balance at end of year 20 4 4 28

(17) Share capital and distributions

Ordinary shares (fully paid)

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Total issued capital at beginning of year 10 10 10 10

Movements in issued and fully paid ordinary shares 

Shares Issued 422 - 422 -

Total issued capital at end of year 432 10 432 10

Ordinary shares (fully paid)

in millions of shares 2014 2013 2014 2013

Total issued capital at beginning of year 5 5 5 5

Movements in issued and fully paid ordinary shares 

Shares Issued 395 - 395 -

Total issued capital at end of year 400 5 400 5

498,108 shares at a cost of $1.8m are held by Z Energy LTI Trustee Limited for Z's restricted share long-term incentive plan.

2014 2014 2013 2013

Dividend
 $m 

 cents per share 
 $m 

 cents per share 

2012 Final dividend (paid May 12)                        35 700 

2013 Interim dividend (paid November 12) 32 649 

2013 Final dividend (paid June 13) 29 580 

2014 Special dividend (paid June 13) 50 1,000 

2014 Non-cash dividend to settle intercompany balances 555 11,100 

2014 Interim dividend (paid December 13) 31 8 

Final dividend declared subsequent to balance date not provided (refer to note 29) 

Group and Parent

Group

Group Parent

Parent

Estimated remediation costs of sites are recognised on an accrual basis at the time there is a formal plan or obligation, legal or constructive, in 

place.  The remediation costs are expected to be settled between one and 30 years depending on the location.

Group and Parent

A provision is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 

past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Estimated decommissioning and restoration costs are recognised at the estimated future cost. The estimated future cost is calculated using 

amounts discounted over the estimated useful economic life of the assets. The discount rate applied is the risk free rate of return which has 

been equated to be the New Zealand 10-year bond rate. Decommissioning and restoration costs expected to be settled within one year are 

classified as current liabilities.  Decommissioning and restoration costs expected to be settled between one and thirty years are classified as 

non current.

Group and Parent

All fully paid ordinary shares have equal voting rights and share equally in dividends and equity.  The issued shares have no par value. All 

authorised shares are issued.
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(18) Earnings per share

2014 2013

Profit after tax attributable to Shareholders of the parent 

company ($m) 95 137

Weighted average number of shares (million) 244                          5 

Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) 39                   2,740 

(19) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risk, see note 21.

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Facilities not utilised at reporting date

Secured bank facilities                              400                      400                      400                      400 

400 400 400 400

Financing arrangements

Throughout the year the Group has complied with all debt covenant requirements as imposed by lenders.

(20) Bonds

2014 2013

 $m  $m 

Balance at beginning of year                              438 303

Issued                                -   135

Balance of Bonds at end of year                              438 438

Transaction costs to be amortised (5) (6)

Unwind of fair value loss on substitution (3) (2)

Balance at end of year                              430 430

Current                                -   -

Non current                              430 430

Balance at end of year                              430 430

Repayment terms and interest rates:

Maturing on 15 October 2016, 7.35% per annum fixed coupon rate                              149 149

Maturing on 15 August 2018, 7.25% per annum fixed coupon rate                              148 148

Maturing on 15 November 2019, 6.50% per annum fixed coupon rate                              133 133

Balance at end of year                              430 430

Fixed coupon

The bonds require the borrowers to maintain certain levels of performance, security and gearing and get the indirect benefits of bank 

covenants through cross default provisions. 

Parent

The Group's debt includes bank facilities secured against certain assets of the Group. The facilities require Z to maintain certain levels of 

shareholder funds and securities and operate within defined performance and gearing ratios. The arrangements also include restrictions over 

the sale or disposal of certain assets without bank agreement. 

At 31 March 2014 the Group had secured bank debt facilities of $400m (2013: $400m). No amounts were drawn on the $350m facility or the 

$50m working capital and revolving term debt facility. Both facilities mature 4 July 2016. 

Group and Parent

Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at 

amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over 

the period of the borrowing using the effective interest rate. Bond and bank debt issue expenses, fees and other costs incurred in arranging 

finance are capitalised and amortised over the term of the relevant debt instrument or debt facility using the effective interest rate method. 

The fixed coupon bonds Z has on issue are at a face value of $1.00 per bond.  Interest is payable bi-annually on the  bond maturing 15 

October 2016, and quarterly on the bonds maturing 15 August 2018 and 15 November 2019.

The bank debt facilities are able to be drawn-down as required subject to Z being in compliance with undertakings in respect of those 

facilities.  Working capital loans and revolving term debt loans must be repaid on the relevant due dates. Interest rates are determined by 

reference to prevailing money market rates at the time of draw-down plus a margin. Interest rates paid during the year ranged from 3.7% to 

3.9% (2013: 3.9% to 5.9%).

Group

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Group and Parent
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

(21) Financial risk management

For the year ended 31 March 2014

 6 

months 

or less 

6-12 

months

 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years  5 years + Contractual 

cash flows

 Statement of 

Financial 

Position 

 $m  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Accounts payable      (397)          -                      -                      -                      -   (397)                               (397)
Finance leases          (1) (1)                             (2)                    (7)                  (13) (24)                                   (13)

Bank overdraft          -            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Secured bank facilities          -            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Bonds        (15)        (15)                  (30)                (361)                (142)                (564)                (430)

     (413)        (16)                  (32)                (368)                (155)                (985)                (840)

Derivative financial instruments (liabilities)/assets

Foreign exchange contracts          -            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -   

Interest rate swaps          -            -                      (1)                    (2)                     8                     5                     2 

Commodity hedges          (1)          -                      -                      -                      -                      (1)                    (1)

         (1)          -                      (1)                    (2)                     8                     4                     1 

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

• Credit risk

• Liquidity risk

• Market risk (interest rates, foreign exchange and oil commodity prices)

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.  

The Board has established an Audit and Risk Committee with responsibilities which include reviewing treasury practices and 

policies. The Group has established a Treasury Management Committee to review and set treasury strategy within policy 

guidelines and report on market risk positions and exposures. The Group has developed a comprehensive, enterprise wide risk 

management framework which guides management and the Board in the identification, assessment and monitoring of new 

and existing risks. Management report to the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board on the relevant risks and the controls and 

treatments for those risks.

In accordance with the Group's risk management policies, the Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for 

speculative purposes. Derivatives are not hedge accounted and are required to be accounted for at fair value through profit or 

loss. Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value at the date they are entered into. Subsequent to initial 

recognition, derivative financial instruments are stated at fair value at each Statement of Financial Position date.  The resulting 

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations, resulting in financial loss to the Group.  

The Group is exposed to credit risk in the normal course of business including those arising from trade receivables with its 

customers, financial derivatives and transactions (including cash balances) with financial institutions. The Group has adopted a 

policy to assure the credit-worthiness of our counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.  The 

Group minimises its exposure to credit risk of trade receivables through the adoption of counterparty credit limits and standard 

payment terms.  Derivative counterparties and cash deposit transactions are limited to high-credit-quality financial institutions 

and organisations in the relevant industry.  The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of counterparties are monitored, and the 

aggregate value of transactions concluded are spread amongst approved counterparties.  The carrying amounts of financial 

assets recognised in the Statement of Financial Position best represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the 

reporting date. Generally no security is held on these amounts. Concentration of  credit risk with respect to trade receivables is 

limited due to the Group’s large customer base. Less than 2% of the Group's receivables are more than 30 days overdue.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that assets held by the Group cannot readily be converted to cash to meet the Group's contracted cash 

flow obligations. Liquidity risk is monitored by continuously forecasting cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial 

assets and liabilities.  The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stress conditions. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining 

an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and spreading debt maturities in accordance with policy. 

The tables below analyse the Group and Parent financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the earliest 

possible contractual maturity date at the year end.  The amounts in the tables below are contractual undiscounted cash flows, 

which include interest through to maturity.

Group and Parent

Page 18



Z ENERGY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

For the year ended 31 March 2013

 6 

months 

or less 

6-12 

months

 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years  5 years + Contractual 

cash flows

 Statement of 

Financial 

Position 

 $m $m  $m $m  $m $m  $m 

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Accounts payable (484) - - - - (484) (484)

Finance leases (1) (1) (2) (6) (16) (26) (13)

Bank overdraft - - - - - - -

Secured bank facilities - - - - - - -

Bonds (15) (15) (30) (228) (306) (594) (430)

(500) (16) (32) (234) (322) (1,104) (927)

Derivative financial instruments liabilities

Foreign exchange contracts - - - - - - -

Commodity hedges (5) - - - - (5) (5)

(5) - - - - (5) (5)

There are no differences between the expected and contractual maturities for the Parent's financial liabilities.

Market Risk

Interest Rate 

Sensitivity analysis

Group and Parent

The Parent balances are equal to Group other than subsidiary accounts payable with a value of $4m aged six months or less. 

Interest rate risk (cash flow and fair value). Z's primary interest risk arises from its issued bonds (see note 20) which are sourced at 

fixed interest rates. In accordance with the Treasury policy, Z manages its exposure to interest rate risk by entering into interest 

rate swaps (IRS). By managing the interest rate risk, Z aims to minimise the cost of debt and manage the impact of interest rate 

volatility on the Group's interest income and expense cash flow and earnings. The aggregate of notional principal amount of the 

outstanding Interest Rate Swaps at 31 March 2014 is $590m (2013: $295m). The fair value of the IRS is $2m (2013: $4m).

At 31 March 2014, if bank interest rates at that date had  been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held 

constant, would change post-tax profit for the year by $0.2m lower/higher (2013: $0.5m).
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Foreign currency

Sensitivity analysis

Commodity hedges

Sensitivity analysis

The Group has exposure to purchase timing risk on commodities. This is defined as the difference in timing of when purchases of 

crude and product are priced, and when volumes of product are sold each month. 

The Group enters into commodity swap contracts under the terms of its Treasury Policy to reduce the risk from price fluctuations, 

by matching purchase and sales volumes in a particular month. All hedging is within a 6 month duration.  At 31 March 2014 the 

fair value of commodity hedges was ($1)m (2013: $5m).

The Group has exposure to currency risk on the value of its sales contracts, commodity/product supply purchases, other 

transaction flows, and assets/liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.   The Group enters into forward exchange contracts 

under the terms of its Treasury Policy to reduce the risk from price fluctuations of foreign currency commitments mainly 

associated with the purchase of hydrocarbons.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Group at exchange rates at the dates of the 

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the 

functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference 

between amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for interest and payments during the 

period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period. The resulting gain or 

loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The aggregate notional principal amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2014 was $17m 

(2013: $224m).  At balance date the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding was nil (2013: nil).

At 31 March 2014, if the New Zealand dollar had strengthened/weakened by 10% per cent against the currencies with which the 

Group has foreign currency risk with all other variables held constant, would change post-tax profit for the year by $21m 

higher/$22m lower. (2013: $25m).

At 31 March 2014, if the Oil commodity  price  had weakened/strengthened by 10% per cent in which the Group has 

Commodity price risk with all other variables held constant, the value of commodity derivatives would change post-tax profit for 

the year by $0.2m lower/higher (2013: $9.9m).
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Fair value measurement in the financial statements

Asset and liability fair value classification

2014

 Held for 

trading at fair 

value 

 Available for 

Sale 

Loans and 

receivables

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

 Fair value 

Assets  $m  $m  $m  $m  $m 
Cash and cash equivalents                    -                      -                   178                 178                 178 
Other investments                    -                      -                      -                      -                      -   
Derivatives                   13                    -                      -                     13                   13 
Trade receivables                    -                      -                   211                 211                 211 

Total assets                   13                    -                   389                 402                 402 

 Held for 

trading at fair 

value 

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

 Fair value 

Liabilities  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Bonds - (430) (430) (451)
Secured bank facilities - - - -
Derivatives (12) - (12) (12)
Bank overdraft - - - -
Finance leases - (13) (13) (13)
Accounts payable - (397) (397) (397)

Total liabilities (12) (840) (852) (873)

Asset and liability fair value classification

2013

 Available for 

Sale 

Loans and 

receivables

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

 Fair value 

Assets  $m  $m  $m  $m 
Cash and cash equivalents - 115 115 115
Other investments 1 - 1 1
Trade receivables - 225 225 225

Total assets 1 340 341 341

 Held for 

trading at fair 

value 

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

 Fair value 

Liabilities  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Bonds - (430) (430) (469)
Derivatives (5) - (5) (5)
Bank overdraft - (13) (13) (13)
Accounts payable - (484) (484) (484)

Total liabilities (5) (927) (932) (971)

Group and Parent

Group

Where the fair value of a derivative is calculated using discounted cash flow analysis, the two key types of variables used by this 

valuation technique are as follows:

• forward price curve (for the relevant underlying interest rates, foreign exchange rates or commodity prices); and

• discount rates.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements is their amortised cost, with 

the exception of derivatives which are held at fair value.

The fair values of derivatives are  calculated using observable market rates based on discounted cash flow analysis. The fair 

values determined capture the applicable credit risk of the counterparties and are a level 2 fair value measurement per the 

requirements of NZ IFRS 7 (explained below).

The selection of variables requires judgement and therefore there is a range of reasonably possible assumptions in respect of 

these variables that could be used in estimating the fair value of these derivatives. 
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Asset and liability fair value classification

2013

 Available for 

Sale 

Loans and 

receivables

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

 Fair value 

Assets  $m  $m  $m  $m 
Cash and cash equivalents - 114 114 114
Other investments 1 - 1 1
Trade receivables - 225 225 225

Total assets 1 339 340 340

 Held for 

trading at fair 

value 

Financial 

liabilities at 

amortised 

cost

 Total 

carrying 

amount 

 Fair value 

Liabilities  $m  $m  $m  $m 

Bonds - (430) (430) (469)
Derivatives (5) - (5) (5)
Bank overdraft - (13) (13) (13)
Accounts payable - (488) (488) (488)

Total liabilities (5) (931) (936) (975)

• Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

• Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Capital management

The Group's capital includes share capital and retained earnings.   The Company's borrowings are subject to certain 

compliance ratios relevant to the facility agreements or the trust deed applicable to the borrowings.  The Group will seek to 

spread the maturities of its debt with no more than 50% of core debt facilities maturing in any forward 12 month period. 

Discussions on refinancing of bank debt facilities will normally commence at least six months before maturity with facility terms 

agreed at least three months prior to maturity.  Bank facilities are maintained with AA- or above rated financial institutions, with a 

syndicate of four bank counterparties to ensure diversification.

NZ IFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements using the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

• Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as 

prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

The key factors in determining Z's optimal capital structure are:

• Nature of activities 

• Forecast of earnings and cash flows

• Capital needs over the forecast period

• Available sources of capital and relative cost

Parent

At 31 March 2014, the fair value of Bonds disclosed in the table above was a Level 1 measurement (2013: level 1) and the fair 

value of derivatives was a Level 2 measurement (2013 Level 2).  The fair value disclosed for Bonds is the quoted price of the 

Bonds on the NZDX as at 31 March 2014.  The fair value disclosed for derivatives is calculated using observable market rates 

based on discounted cash flow analysis and for the remaining financial instruments recorded in the statement of financial 

position, carrying value approximates fair value.
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(22) Leases

Operating leases

The Group has receivables from operating leases relating to the lease of premises. These receivables expire as follows: 

2014 2013 2014 2013
 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Operating lease receivables as lessor

Between 0 to 1 year                          3                          3                          3                          3 

Between 1 to 5 years                        12                        13                        12                        13 

More than 5 years                        27                        29                        27                        29 

                       42                        45                        42                        45 

2014 2013 2014 2013
 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Operating lease payables as lessee

Between 0 to 1 year                        20                        20                        20                        20 

Between 1 to 5 years                        77                        85                        77                        85 

More than 5 years                        79                      112                        79                      112 

                     176                      217                      176                      217 

Finance leases as lessee

2014 2013
Present value of minimum lease payments  $m  $m 

Between 0 to 1 year                          1                         -   

Between 1 to 5 years                          3                          2 

More than 5 years                          9                        11 

Present value of minimum lease payments                        13                        13 

2014 2013

 $m  $m 
Lease liability under Finance Leases

Between 0 to 1 year                          2                          2 

Between 1 to 5 years                          9                          8 

More than 5 years                        13                        16 

Minimum lease payments                        24                        26 

Less interest attributable to future years                        11                        13 

Present value of minimum lease payments                        13                        13 

Present value of minimum lease payments - Short term                          1                         -   
Present value of minimum lease payments - Long term                        12                        13 

Operating lease payments, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased items, 

are charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease term.

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items, are 

capitalised at the lower of fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments.  The leased assets and corresponding 

liabilities are therefore recognised and the assets are depreciated in line with the Group’s depreciation policy to reflect the 

estimated useful lives.   Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to produce a constant 

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each year.

The Group has finance leases arising from the sale and leaseback of buildings and plant and machinery with a carrying amount of 

$10m (2013: $2m).  These lease contracts expire within six to twelve years and have additional terms of renewal. The Group also 

receives some sub-lease income on these assets but this does not have a significant impact on the profit or loss.

Group and Parent

Group and Parent

Group Parent

The Group has various non-cancellable operating leases.  The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights.  On 

renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated. The lease payables are predominantly for the lease of land and buildings.

Group Parent

Lease costs expensed and sub-lease income received through profit or loss during the year were $23m (2013: $17m) and $1m (2013: 

$1m) respectively.
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(23) Share based payments

Z Energy Limited Restricted Share Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan 

 

The restricted share LTI  was introduced for selected senior Z Energy employees on 19 August 2013 and will run until 31 

March 2016.  Under the LTI plan ordinary shares in the Parent are issued to Z Energy LTI Trustee Limited (the Trustee),  a 

subsidiary. Participants purchase shares from the Trustee with funds lent to them by the Parent company.  The shares vest 

after a three-year period if total shareholder return, hurdles and performance  targets are met, although a reduced 

period may be used in some cases. If the individual is still employed by the Parent at the end of the vesting period, the 

employee is provided a cash bonus which must be used to repay the loan and the shares are then transferred to the 

individual.  

 

Measurement of fair values  

 

The fair value of the LTI plan has been determined using the framework of the Black-Scholes and Margrabe option pricing 

models.  

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date were as follows. 

 

Weighted average share price at grant date  $3.71 

Contractual life      2.61 years 

Risk free rate      3.7% 

Standard deviation of Z share price   17.5%-22.5% 

Standard deviation of NZX50    9% 

Correlation between Z share price and NZX50  0.28-0.57 

 

The volatility and correlation measures were derived from measuring the standard deviation of  Z's share price with 

reference to the standard deviation of returns for listed companies that operate in the NZ and Australian petroleum and 

retail sectors. There was insufficient historical data to base the measures on Z's share price alone. The standard deviation 

of NZX50 was based on historical returns for the NZX50 Gross Index over a three year period. The risk free rate was based 

on annualised government bond yield for the term.  

   

Assumptions have been made that the participants will remain employed with Z and will achieve the minimum 

performance levels in each period to the vesting date. Dividends paid on shares are not material to the value of the 

shares granted under the plan. 

 

The estimate of the fair value per share is in the  range of $1.00 to $1.40 with a point estimate of $1.26. The grant  date fair 

value of equity settled share based payment awards is recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in 

equity, over the vesting period of the plan.  The expense relating to the LTI plan in the year ended 31 March 2014 is $0.2m 

(2013: nil). The unamortised fair value of the remaining share at 31  March 2014 is $0.5m (2013: nil). 

 

Number of shares  

Shares granted during the year ended 31 March 2014: 498,108 (2013: nil).   

Outstanding shares at 31 March 2014: 498,108 (2013: nil).  Outstanding shares have a remaining contractual life of 2 years 

and are grant date fair valued at $1.26 each. No shares were exercised, forfeited or have expired during the year.  

 

An employee share purchase programme also exists which does not have a material impact on these financial 

statements. 
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(24) Related parties

b) Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel have been defined as the directors, the chief executive and the executive team for the Group.

Key management personnel compensation 

comprised the following. 
2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Short-term employee benefits                       4 4                     4                                4 

Other long-term benefits                       2 1                     2                                1 

Termination benefits                       1                    -                       1                               -   

                      7 5                     7                                5 

Executive members also participate in the Group's restricted share LTI Plan (see note 23).

c) Other related party transactions

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Subsidiaries                      -                      -                     -                                83 

Associates                       2                     3                     2                                3 

Infratil Group                       1                     1                     1                                1 

Companies with common directorship                       4                     5                     4                                5 

                      7                     9                     7                              92 

Purchases of goods and services
Associates                   482                   48                 482                              48 

Infratil Group                       1                     1                     1                                1 

Companies with common ownership                      -                   441                   -                              441 

                  483                 490                 483                            490 

The following other balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Associates                      -                      -                     -                                 -   

Infratil Group                      -                      -                     -                                 -   

Companies within AEHL Group                      -                   720                   -                              720 

Companies with common directorship                       1                    -                     -                                 -   

                      1                 720                   -                              720 

Current payables

Associates                     43                     3                     1                                3 

Companies within AEHL Group                      -                   315                   -                              315 

Companies with common ownership                      -                     38                   -                                 -   

                    43                 356                     1                            318 

Parent

Certain Z directors have relevant interests in a number of companies with which Z has transactions in the normal course of business. A 

number of Z directors are also non-executive directors of other companies. Any transactions undertaken with these entities have been 

entered into as part of the ordinary business of Z and are not included below.

a) Ultimate parent entities

Current receivables

Included in profit or loss are sales and expenses which arise from transactions between group and associated companies. Such 

transactions mainly comprise sales and purchases of goods and services in the ordinary course of business on normal trading terms, but also 

include dividends and interest.

During the year Z purchased the investment in Refining NZ from the ultimate parent group (refer to note 1), settled related party balances 

with companies within the ultimate parent group (as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows) and received interest of $8m from the ultimate 

parent group.

Group Parent

Sales of goods and services

From 1 April 2013 until 19 August 2013, the ultimate parent group of Z was Aotea Energy Holding Limited (AEHL).  As a result of the initial 

public offer on 19 August 2013, AEHL's shareholding reduced to 40%. From 1 March 2014, AEHL control ceased as a result of change in the 

shareholding. 

Group

Group Parent
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(25) Commitments

Capital commitments relate to property, plant and equipment and contracts for the purchase of ETS units.

2014 2013 2014 2013

 $m  $m  $m  $m 

Contracted but not provided for                     18                   64                   18                              64 

                    18                   64                   18                              64 

(26) Contingent liabilities

(27) Contingent assets

The Group has submitted insurance claims of $2m (2013: $3m) relating to the Christchurch earthquake but there is no certainty these will be 

paid so an asset has not been recognised.

Group Parent

The Group has guaranteed an exposure of up to $5m (2013: $5m) to a financier of one of the Group’s associate companies.  
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(28) Comparison against prospectus forecast

Statement of Comprehensive Income vs. Prospectus Forecast

Actual
Adjusted 

Forecast
 Forecast

2014 2014 2014

 $m  $m  $m 

Total revenue                  3,371                  3,548                  2,968 

Excise and carbon expense                  (546)                   (580)                        -   

Purchases of crude and product               (2,311)                (2,427)                (2,432) 

Primary distribution expenses                    (25)                     (26)                     (26) 

Operating expenses                  (281)                   (296)                   (291) 

Share of earnings of associate companies (net of tax)                       (5)                         6                         6 

                    203                     225                     225 

Depreciation and amortisation                    (39)                     (36)                     (36) 

Impairment                         1                        -                          -   

(Loss) on sale of fixed assets                       (4)                       (1)                       (1) 

Net financing expense                    (25)                     (24)                     (24) 

(Loss) on interest rate derivatives                       (2)                       (1)                       (1) 
Net profit before taxation                     134                     163                     163 

Taxation expense                    (39)                     (45)                     (45) 

Net profit for the year                       95                     118                     118 

Net profit attributable to owners of the company                       95                     118                     118 

Other comprehensive income that will not be classified to profit or loss

Asset revaluation reserve after tax                     143                     140                     140 

Share of associate other comprehensive income after tax                         1                        -                          -   

Other comprehensive income net of tax                     144                     140                     140 

Total comprehensive income for the year                     239                     258                     258 

The forecast numbers for the year ended 31 March 2014 formed part of the Investment Statement and Prospectus dated 25 July 2013. An 

adjusted forecast has been included, where appropriate, to incorporate the presentation change for revenue, excise and carbon 

expense, see note 2. In addition forecast commodity and foreign exchange gains and losses have been reclassified.

EBITDAF

Group

Revenue and purchases of crude and product were below the adjusted forecast due to lower volumes. Operating costs were $10m lower 

than forecast principally due to foreign exchange gains in the year which were not forecast. Refining margins were lower than forecast 

due to the challenging refining market conditions impacting associate company's earnings.  

The Group's primary basis of evaluating business performance is replacement cost operating EBITDAF. This is a non GAAP measure. Refer to 

the Investment Statement and Prospectus dated 25 July 2013 for more detail on this measure. In addition refer to the Group's 

management, discussion and analysis material.
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Statement of Financial Position vs. Prospectus Forecast

Actual Forecast

2014 2014

 $m  $m 

Shareholders' equity                     591                     612 

Represented by:

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents                     178                     146 

Trade, accounts receivable and prepayments                     227                     223 

Inventories                     479                     513 

Derivative financial instruments                         1                        -   
Other assets                        -                           4 
Total current assets                     885                     886 

Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment                     511 547

Intangible assets                       35 25

Investments in associates and subsidiaries                       96 107
Other non current assets                       13 3
Total non current assets                     655                     682 
Total assets                  1,540                  1,568 

Current liabilities

Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities                     424                     439 

Income tax payable                       12                       15 

Provisions                       11                        -   
Derivative financial instruments                         2                         1 
Total current liabilities                     449                     455 

Non current liabilities

Other liabilities                       17                       16 

Provisions                       21                       29 

Derivative financial instruments                       10                        -   

Bonds                     430                     430 

Deferred tax                       22                       26 

Total non current liabilities                     500                     501 

Total liabilities                     949                     956 

Net assets                     591                     612 

Group

Refer below to analysis on cash flows and cash on hand. Inventory levels were lower than forecast due to the unplanned March 2014 

refinery shutdown at Refining NZ. Property, plant and equipment was lower than forecast mainly due to the carry over of build programme 

projects into the subsequent financial year.
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Statement of Changes in  Equity vs. Prospectus Forecast

Group Actual Forecast

2014 2014

$m $m

Equity at 1 April 2013 597 597

Net profit for the year 95 119

Other comprehensive income 144 140

Changes in share capital 422 422

Own shares acquired (2)                        -   

Distributions to new and existing equity owners (665) (665)

Total equity at end of year 591 612

Statement of Cash Flows vs. Prospectus Forecast

Group Actual
Adjusted 

Forecast
Forecast

2014 2014 2014

$m $m $m

Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers 3,387 3,552 3,552 

Dividends received 1 -   -   

Proceeds from insurance recoveries 2 -   -   

Cash was disbursed to:

Payments to suppliers and employees (2,714) (2,835) (3,415)

Excise and carbon paid                  (546) (580) -   

Net Interest paid (20) (32) (32)

Taxation paid (29) (29) (29)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 81 76 76 

Cash flow from investing activities

Cash was provided from:

Sale of investments 1 -   -   

Sale of property, plant and equipment 7 -   -   

Cash was disbursed to:

Purchase of intangible assets (10) -   -   

Purchase of investments (100) (100) (100)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (63) (99) (99)

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (165) (199) (199)

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash was provided from:

Cash from intercompany 162 160 160 

Cash from share capital 422 422 422 

Cash was disbursed to:

Repay financial instruments -   (4) (4)

Finance lease -   (1) (1)

Dividends paid (111) (101) (101)

Cash to intercompany (324) (322) (322)

Share purchase for share scheme (2) -   -   

Net cash inflow from financing activities 147 154 154 

Net increase in cash 63 31 31 

Cash balances at beginning of year 115 115 115 

Cash at end of year 178 146 146 

(29) Events after balance date

Dividend

Subsequent to 31 March 2014 Directors have approved a fully imputed dividend of $0.143 per share, which is equal to $57.2m to be paid 

on 4 June 2014 (2013: $29.1m, $5.82 per share).

Net profit after tax differences to forecast have been explained above, and are the main driver of the change in equity against forecast. 

Net cash outflows from investing activities were $34m lower than forecast due to lower than forecast spend on purchases of property, 

plant and equipment. 
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Z Energy Limited Management Discussion and Analysis  
  

Financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Overview  

This is an analysis and commentary of the factors that have influenced Z Energy’s (Z’s) 

financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2014. Statutory Historical Cost Net 

Profit After Tax (HC NPAT) was $95m, down $42m (31%) on FY13.   This was principally due 

to profit on sale of property assets in FY13 associated with the sale and leaseback of 47 

retail sites, offset by lower financing costs incurred in FY14 given our new capital structure 

post the Initial Public Offering (IPO) in August 2013. 

 Results below are presented on a pro forma replacement cost basis.1  

 

NZD in millions 

Year ended 

31 March 2014 

Pro forma 

Year ended 

31 March 2013 

Pro forma 

Var 

$m 

Var 

 

Total Revenue2 3,371 3,558 (187) (5%) 

Replacement cost gross margin3 (RC 

gross margin) 
500 485 15 3% 

Operating costs (excluding primary 

distribution costs) 
(281) (289) 8 3% 

Replacement Cost Operating EBITDAF  219 196 23 12% 

Share of earnings in associates (1) 6 (7) <> 

Replacement Cost EBITDAF  218 202 16 8% 

Depreciation and amortisation (39) (39) - - 

Net financing expense (33) (39) 6 15% 

Profit and loss on sale of assets  (4) 41 (45) <> 

Other (1) 4 (5) <> 

Taxation (incl. tax on COSA1) (40) (31) (9) (29%) 

Replacement Cost Net Profit After Tax  101 138 (37) (27%) 

Pro Forma Profit for the year ended FY14 

Replacement cost Operating EBITDAF (RC Operating EBITDAF) has increased $23m on 

FY13. This has been achieved through our continued focus on building more sustainable 

                                            
1 Information on the pro forma presentation and replacement cost (including the cost of sales adjustment – 

COSA) can be found in the appendices in the attached presentation pack. 

2 The results have been modified to show Total Revenue gross with a separate excise and carbon expense. This 

change has no impact on reported profitability. 

3 Consistent with half year reporting, there has been a presentational change whereby realised and unrealised 

gains and losses on FX and commodities are no longer included within purchases, instead they are shown as a 

separate line within operating costs.   

 



 

 

 

margins across our fuel marketing business. A further contributor to this result has been 

the benefit of the stronger NZD:USD exchange rate in the last quarter of the financial 

year which resulted in gains (realised and unrealised) in foreign exchange and 

commodity transactions that have contributed $7m to the FY14 result. This gain has been 

partially offset by lower refining margins ($6m) due to current global demand and supply 

variables. 

The reduced earnings from associates is due to lower earnings from the New Zealand 

Refining Company Limited (Refining NZ) due to unplanned refinery outages and a 

challenging refining market. 

Replacement Cost Net Profit After Tax (RC NPAT) was $101m, down $37m (27%) on FY13. 

In FY13, we sold 47 retail service station sites, resulting in an after tax gain of $46m 

included in the above property disposals line. Excluding this gain, the underlying FY13 

result was $92m. Therefore, FY14 RC NPAT increased by $9m (10%) on the underlying 

performance in FY13.  This reflects the strength of the underlying Z FY14 operating result 

and the benefits of being integrated and responsive to changing market conditions.   

Fuel Volumes 

 

Million litres (ml) 

Year ended 

31 March 2014 

Actual 

Year ended 

31 March 2013 

Actual 

Var 

$m 
Var 

Petrol  832 884 (52) (6%) 

Diesel  852 874 (22) (3%) 

Other fuels 634 656 (22) (3%) 

Sub total 2,318 2,414 (96) (4%) 

Supply and Export 114 92 22 24% 

Total 2,432 2,506 (74) (3%) 

 

Z’s petrol volumes have declined 6% relative to an industry decline of 1% for the year. This 

is a reflection of the highly competitive market place in which the recovery of petrol 

margins to more sustainable levels continues to occur. At the same time, competitors 

have an increased focus on securing additional volumes through discounting activity.  

Z’s diesel volumes have declined 3%. Adjusting for the impact of the loss of two large 

customer contracts in the commercial business during FY13, this is an underlying 

improvement of 2% year on year. Industry diesel volumes have grown 5% over the prior 

year.   

Positive momentum has been generated over the last quarter due to tactical marketing 

initiatives which have delivered increased market share. 

Quarterly operational data for the full FY14 financial year is included in the appendices 

at the end of this document. 

Supply and Export volumes 

Supply and Export includes the supply of fuels to other fuel companies and fuel 

distributors in New Zealand as well as the export (primarily of fuel oil) to Australia. Sales 



 

 

 

volumes have increased by 22ml (24%) primarily as a result of Z’s tactical supply chain 

management. Of this volume 45% has been sold domestically and 55% exported. This 

compares to FY13 being 30% sold domestically in New Zealand and the remaining 70% 

exported.  

Replacement Cost Gross Margin 

NZD in millions 

Year ended 

31 March 2014 

Actual 

Year ended 

31 March 2013 

Actual 

Var 

$m 

Var 

 

Fuels  415 397 18 5% 

Non fuels 58 54 4 7% 

Refining 24 30 (6) (20%) 

Other  3 4 (1) (25%) 

Total  500 485 15 3% 

Fuel Volumes     

Fuel Sales (ml) 2,432 2,506 (74) (3%) 

Refining production (million bbl) 11.7 12.4 (0.7) (6%) 

Margin     

Fuels cents per litre(cpl) 17.1 15.8 1.3 8% 

GRM (USD/bbl) $5.52 $6.57 ($1.05) (16%) 

GRM (NZD/bbl) $6.73 $8.07 ($1.34) (17%) 

 

Note: Fuels gross margin is net of primary distribution expenses. Primary distribution covers 

fuels distribution from the refinery to terminals, including both the cost of coastal 

distribution operations and the Refinery to Auckland Pipeline (RAP). 

Fuels Margin 

Z’s Fuels gross margin (replacement cost) has increased by $18m or 5%.  This reflects Z’s 

commitment to continuing to secure a more sustainable margin that reflects the costs of 

increased working capital due to higher crude prices and increased operating costs.  

During the year, margin growth of 1.3 cents per litre (cpl) has been achieved; this growth 

has come from both retail and commercial portfolios.  

Management continues to seek to improve margins and is making deliberate choices 

around optimising the margin / volume mix. 

Non Fuels Margin 

Z’s Non Fuels revenue flows directly through to gross margin, reflecting the business 

arrangement with the retailers of Z’s retail service station network, under which retailers 

are independent business operators.  The increase in gross margin contribution has been 

driven by the continued growth in our food and coffee sales as we continue to execute 

on our convenience strategy. Car wash sales have increased 13% on the FY13 period. 



 

 

 

Refining Margin 

Gross Refining Margin (GRM) decreased across the year by 20%. The Gross Refining 

Margin continues to be volatile between months as it is driven by global oil prices and 

regional supply and demand variables across the Asia Pacific region.  The resurgence in 

refining activity in the United States due to shale oil production has impacted refining 

margins on a global basis. There was also the additional effect of two Refining NZ 

shutdowns in the year, compared to the normal cycle of one shutdown. 

The NZD:USD exchange rate was broadly in line at year end compared to FY13, being 

0.82 for FY14 compared to 0.81 for FY13. However, there was significant volatility in the first 

half of the year particularly, with the rate moving between 0.77 and 0.86. The second half 

of the year reflected lower volatility, with the rate moving between 0.81 and 0.87.   

Other margins 

Other margins capture the margins generated from Z’s chemicals business. Z 

discontinued its chemicals business, as previously announced to the market, at the end 

of March 2014.  

Operating expenses 

NZD in millions 

Year ended 31 

March 2014 

Actual 

Year ended 31 

March 2013 

Actual 

Var 

$m 

Var 

 

On site   46 40 (6) (15%) 

Selling commissions 56 59 3 5% 

Secondary distribution 46 47 1 2% 

Employee benefits 50 41 (9) (22%) 

Storage and handling 18 20 2 10% 

Insurance 8 8 - - 

Administration and other 64 64 - - 

Realised / unrealised (gains) 

losses on foreign exchange 

and commodity transactions (7) 10 17 <> 

Operating expenses 281 289 8 3% 

 

Operating expenses have reduced by 3% over the year.  This reflects:  

 On-site expenses reflect the additional lease expenses incurred relating to the sale 

and leaseback of 47 retail sites in FY13 (~ $5m annual increase). 

 Selling commissions have fallen in line with lower fuel volumes.  

 Employee expenses have increased due to the benefit of a legacy pension plan 

credit (~$2m) in the prior year, an increase in short term and long term incentive 

provisions and restructuring activity that has occurred during the year as Z aligns 

the business for future growth (~$5m).  

 Realised / unrealised (gains) on foreign exchange and commodity transactions 

reflect the timing difference on the purchase of crude and refined product in USD 



 

 

 

between purchase and settlement dates.  It also incorporates the impact of our 

foreign exchange and commodity hedging program.  

Share of earnings in associates (Refining NZ and Loyalty NZ)  

At the start of the year, Z Energy Holdings Limited (ZEHL) - Z’s then parent - held the 

investment in Refining NZ. This was transferred to Z in August 2013.  

The investment is equity accounted.  On a pro forma basis, earnings for FY14 were ($1m). 

This compares to $6m for the prior year.  The reduction is largely due to reducing 

international refining margins and the impact of a stronger NZD:USD exchange rate. 

Other earnings from associates related to Z’s investment in Loyalty NZ were $0.5m. This 

compares to $0.3m in FY13.  

Net financing expense 

Financing expenses reflect the financing of long term obligations, largely funded through 

the retail bond offerings in FY11 ($147m at 7.35%); FY12 ($150m at 7.25%); and FY13 

($135m at 6.50%). Financing expenses also include commitment fees for Z’s bank facilities 

and interest on any working capital drawings, offset by interest income on cash 

balances.   

On a pro forma basis, net interest expense in FY14 of $33m was incurred, which 

compares to $39m for the prior year. 

Profit and loss on sale of assets 

In FY14 the loss on sale of assets relates to both assets being replaced through our retail 

KDR programme (knock down and rebuild) and our normal integrity replacement 

programme. In FY13 the gain was related to the profit on the sale and leaseback of 47 

retail sites of $46m offset by other asset disposals.   

Taxation 

Z’s tax expense (excluding tax on Cost of Sales Adjustment – COSA) for the year ended 

31 March 2014 was $39m. Tax expense is based on historical cost profit. This was an 

increase of $6m and reflects an effective tax rate of 29%, broadly in line with the 

statutory corporate tax rate. 

Cashflows 

Net cash inflow from operating activities was $81m for the year off the back of strong RC 

Operating EBITDAF. 

Net cash outflow from investing activities was $165m. The bulk of this was made up of the 

purchase by Z of the stake in Refining NZ ($100m), purchase of intangible assets ($10m) 

and purchases of fixed assets of ($63m). 

Net cash inflow from financing activities was $147m. During the year funds of $160m that 

were on call via an intercompany balance at 31 March 2013 were returned. In addition 

funds were applied to the payment of the dividends during the year ($111m) as well as 

the purchase of shares for the employee scheme ($2m). Also, proceeds from the IPO of 

$422m were received and applied to intercompany borrowings and used to fund the 

acquisition of the shareholding in Refining NZ. 

  



 

 

 

Balance Sheet 

Working Capital 

NZD in millions 
As at  

31 March 2014 

As at  

31 March 2013 

Var 

$m 
Var 

Inventory 479 482 (3) (1%) 

Accounts payable, accruals 

and other liabilities  
424 509 (85) (17%) 

Trade, accounts receivable 

and prepayments 
227 241 (14) (6%) 

Inventory 

The purchase and settlement of crude oil and refined product inventory is a significant 

driver of Z’s net working capital position and can cause material changes in net working 

capital balances. The timing of crude purchases is influenced by the Refining NZ 

production schedule. 

At 31 March 2014, Z’s inventory balance was $479m, recorded at lower of historic cost 

and net realisable value on a First in, First Out (FIFO) basis, which comprised $94m of 

crude oil and $311m of refined products, with the remainder being attributable to excise 

and carbon associated with the stock on hand.  At 31 March 2014 Z held 3.1m barrels on 

hand, compared to 3.0m at 31 March 2013.   

Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities 

Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities consists of hydrocarbon payables, 

government duties and tax payables, non-hydrocarbon payables and carbon payables. 

Hydrocarbon payables relate to crude oil and refined product purchases including 

associated costs (i.e. shipping, wharfage and inspection fees). Government duties and 

tax payables arise when refined product is imported or leaves the refinery. Non-

hydrocarbon payables include operating and capital structure payables, sundry 

creditors, Refining NZ processing fees, employee entitlements and convenience retail 

payables. Z accumulates ETS carbon units and subsequently surrenders these to the New 

Zealand Emission Unit Register (NZEUR) by May of the following year in respect of its 

previous calendar year compliance obligation. 

Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities at 31 March 2014 were $424m, 

comprising product payables of $253m, excise accruals of $44m, and other payables of 

$127m. 

Receivables 

Z has a range of trade terms with its varying customer base. Commercial trade terms 

typically vary from seven days to the 21st of the month following for some customers. 

Retail fuel sales are effectively cash receipts credited two days following sale. Credit 

terms on convenience items provided to retail operators are 20 to 30 days following 

delivery. 



 

 

 

At 31 March 2014, receivables were $227m which is in line with Z’s historical average 

receivable days sales. This is a $14m decrease from the prior year.  

Net Debt 

Net debt (long term debt less cash) was $252m. This is broadly in line with annual levels 

referred to in Z’s Investment Statement and Prospectus of $284m, with the difference 

associated with movements in working capital.   

  



 

 

 

Appendix 1: Z Energy – quarterly operational data 

 

 March 2014 December 2013 September 2013 June 2013 

HSSE     

Lost time injuries 1 6 1 5 

Spills to ground 0 1 0 0 

Robberies 1 2 2 0 

Fuel quality incidents 0 0 0 0 

Process safety incidents 0 0 0 0 

     

Fuels – millions of litres 

(ml) 
    

Total industry volumes 

(all fuels)4 
2,109 2,086 1,929 1,920 

Z total fuel volumes 613 618 604 597 

Petrol 205 214 204 209 

Diesel 220 231 204 197 

Other fuels 187 158 140 149 

Supply/Export sales 1 15 56 42 

     

Average MBIE retail importer margin (cpl)5 

Petrol 28.2 27.6 29.1 27.2 

Diesel 32.0 30.8 28.6 29.0 

     

Refining 

Refining NZ gross refining margin (GRM) 

USD GRM per barrel6 3.86 2.91 6.05 6.84 

NZD GRM per barrel7 4.66 3.49 7.64 8.65 

  

                                            
4 Excludes supply/export sales 

5 MBIE provides public benchmark data around importer margins. More information is available at: 

http://www.med.govt.nz/sectors-industries/energy/liquid-fuel-market/weekly-oil-price-monitoring/Graphs.pdf 

6
 This number is from Refining NZ published data for the relevant quarter. 

7
 The NZD conversion is calculated by Z. 



 

 

 

 March 2014 December 2013 September 2013 June 2013 

Customer experience     

Commercial customer 

satisfaction* 83% 78% 79% 83% 

Retail customer 

satisfaction* 79% 77% 79% 82% 

Total Z transaction count 14.6 million 14.8 million 14.1 million 14.0 million 

Retail: fuel-only 

transactions 7.7 million 7.8 million 7.8 million 7.8 million 

Retail: fuel and shop 

transactions 2.2 million 2.3 million 2.1 million 2.0 million 

Retail: shop only 

transactions 4.7 million 4.7 million 4.2 million 4.2 million 

Number of service 

stations 213 211 212 213 

Average weekly shop 

sales $27,240 $27,198 $24,622 $24,870 

Number of truck stops 93 93 93 94 

 

* Customer satisfaction determined using ongoing internal customer measurement. 
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Disclaimer 

Please do not read this presentation in isolation 
This presentation supplements our full year results announcement dated 8 May 2014.  It should be read subject to and in conjunction 

with the additional information in that release, other material that we have released to NZX and ASX and our combined Investment 

Statement and Prospectus dated 25 July 2013. That material is available on our website, www.z.co.nz. All references in $ are to New 

Zealand dollars unless otherwise stated. 

 

Forward looking statements are inherently fallible 
This presentation contains forward-looking statements and projections. These reflect our current expectations, based on what we think 

are reasonable assumptions. But for any number of reasons the future could be different – potentially materially different. (For example, 

assumptions may be wrong, risks may crystallise, unexpected things may happen.) We give no warranty or representation as to our 

future financial performance or any future matter. Except as required by law or NZX or ASX listing rules, we are not obliged to update 

this presentation after its release – even if things change materially. 

 

Understand our non-GAAP information 
Some of the financial information in this presentation has not been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

practice (“GAAP”). In particular, we show Pro Forma results and results calculated on the basis of New Zealand “replacement cost 

accounting”. It is very important that you understand how this non-GAAP information relates to our GAAP results. So please read the 

explanation in the appendices. 

 

There is no offer or investment advice in this presentation 
This presentation is for information purposes only. It is not an offer of securities, or a proposal or invitation to make any such offer. It is not 

investment advice or a securities recommendation, and does not take into account any person’s individual circumstances or 

objectives. Every investor should make an independent assessment of Z Energy Limited on the basis of expert financial advice. 

 

Please observe any applicable legal restrictions on distribution 
Distribution of this presentation (including electronically) may be restricted by law. You should observe all such restrictions which may 

apply in your jurisdiction. 

 

Disclaimer 
To the maximum extent permitted by law, we will not be liable (whether in tort (including negligence) or otherwise) to you or any other 

person in relation to this presentation, including any error in it. 

Please read this page before the rest of the presentation 

 

http://www.z.co.nz/
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Headline financials 

• RC Operating EBITDAF above guidance due 

to year end valuation of inventory positions: 

$4.8m of unrealised FX and commodity gains 

likely to unwind in 1Q FY15 

• Growth in RC Operating EBITDAF earnings 

consistent with previous three years CAGR of 

>10% 

• Delivery of earnings demonstrates the 

benefits of being integrated and responsive 

to changing market conditions 

• Final year of three year strategy programme 

delivered on time with results consistent with 

business cases 

• FY13 RC NPAT included after tax profit on 

sale of property assets of $46m relating to 

sale and leaseback initiative 

Key Financials FY14 FY13 Variance  

Historical Cost Net Profit 

After Tax (HC NPAT) 
$95m $137m (31%) 

Pro Forma Replacement 

Cost NPAT (RC NPAT) 
$101m $138m (27%) 

Replacement Cost 

Operating EBITDAF (RC 

Operating EBITDAF) 

$219m $196m 12% 

 

 

Final dividend declared 14.3 cps 

Note:  HC NPAT has been calculated in accordance with NZ GAAP.  RC Operating EBITDAF has been calculated on the basis of 

“replacement cost accounting”.   In this presentation, we show results calculated in accordance with NZ GAAP, pro forma results 

and results calculated on the basis of “replacement cost accounting”.  It is very important that you understand how the pro forma 

results and “replacement costs” results relate to our NZ GAAP results, so please read the explanation and consider the 

reconciliation information in the appendices. 

Operational and financial momentum continues 

 

• Total dividends of 22 cps as per Prospective Financial 

Information (PFI) forecast 
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Health, Safety, Security & Environment 
Some improvements while front footing impending legislative changes 

Operational metrics FY14 FY13 

Total recordable case 

frequency (TRCF) 
4.72 3.28 

Lost time injuries (LTI) 13 8 

Number of Lost Time Days 50 66 

Number of spills (loss of 

containment) 
1 8 

Security incidents 

(robberies only) 
5 5 

Product quality incidents 

(red, i.e. high risk) 
0 0 

Process safety incidents  

(Tier 1 & 2) 
0 0 

• The process of learning from incidents is enabled 

by the improved capture of events using the new 

incident reporting system  

• No employee LTIs, however attention remains on 

those who are not employees but who work on our 

sites and projects  

• Multi year investment underway for on site 

deterrents (e.g. CCTV license plate recognition) 

which protect people and assets 

• Continuing to take a proactive approach to the  

impending changes to the legislative environment: 

- Z representatives on three WorkSafe NZ 

guidance groups 

- Benchmarking Z’s HSSE Management 

System to international standards 

 

• The reporting environment captures Z employees, Mini-Tankers franchisees, Retailers’ employees (207 sites) and tanker drivers 

from Pacific Fuel Haulage, contractors from City Care, Gilbarco, Chemicals, Aviation, and the Awanuia. 

• Total recordable case frequency is based on total number of LTI (loss time injuries), RWI (restricted work injuries) and MTI 

(medically treated injuries) per 200,000 work hours. 
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Trading conditions remain competitive 
Continue to target an optimal mix between volume and margin 

• Industry petrol volumes are -0.8% on the prior year 

compared to full year PFI of -2.0% 

• Industry diesel volumes are +4.6% against prior 

year compared to full year PFI of +2.0% 

• Business and consumer confidence remains 

strong however higher price points and adverse 

weather dampened consumer demand for some 

weeks in 2H 

 

• Market share data does not include supply sales and 

exports 

• Retail trading conditions in 2H similar to the back end 

of 1H (e.g. continued price promotions) although Z 

has been regularly and selectively matching up 

• Commercial trading conditions in 2H characterised by 

increased competition for large volume diesel and jet 

tenders 

Sources:  Industry Exchange data as at March 2014 
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Market share 
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Fuel margin up 5% over pcp 
Procurement and portfolio optimisation delivers material benefits 

• Decline in petrol volumes due to optimising the 

volume and margin mix, but this was not 

sufficiently offset by new sites and rebuilds 

• Volumes sold through supermarket dockets 

were down 38ml compared to pcp 

• Diesel decline has turned around in 2H as we 

selectively acquire new accounts 

• Supply sales capture both non discretionary fuel 

oil exports and tactical supply chain decisions – 

only 16ml in 2H compared to 98ml in 1H 
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• Unit margins at 17.1 cpl (cents per litre), ahead of  

the full year PFI of 16.5 cpl 

• Commercial gross margin improved in 2H due to the 

usual seasonal product mix 

• Z’s average Retail fuel gross margin in 2H was 1.8 cpl 

higher than 1H 

• Weekly Ministry of Business Innovation and 

Employment (MBIE) data does not capture impact of 

“off price board” discounting and promotions 

 

Sales volumes 

(ml) 
FY14 FY13 Variance  

Petrol 832 884 (6%) 

Diesel 852 874 (3%) 

Other 634 656 (3%) 

Supply sales 

and exports 
114 92 24% 

Total sales 2,432 2,506 (3%) 

Fuel Gross Margins (Replacement Cost) $m cpl 
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Non fuels margin up 7% over pcp 
Growth from investments coupled with improved execution 
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• FY13 and FY14 gross margins include one-off 

insurance refunds relating to Christchurch 

earthquakes of $2.5m and $2.1m respectively 

• Store royalty +8% compared to pcp 

• Coffee sales of ~50k units per week 

• Highest growth categories were coffee, food and 

chilled beverages 

• Carwash sales +13% compared to pcp 

• Planned store upgrades completed by July 2013 

• Decline in total transactions driven by decisions on 

optimising fuel margins and the competitive conditions 

in the market 

• Growth in store transactions reflecting the enhanced 

range and growing awareness of the offer 

 

Operational metrics Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 

Number of stores  80 23 104 

Average weekly shop 

sales 
$37k $22k $19k 

Like for like sales 

growth 
+9% +4% +0% 

Total transactions YoY +0% -1% -6% 

Store transactions YoY +7% +5% -4% 
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Refining margin down 20% over pcp 
2H margins significantly lower than PFI and half year forecasts 

Macro environment 

• In 2H NZD/USD traded at higher end of range for an 

extended period of time 

• Renaissance in US refining due to shale oil 

production has impacted refining margins on a 

global basis 

 

 

Local conditions and refinery performance 

• Full year processing volumes were 11.7 million 

barrels, a reduction of 0.9 million barrels to PFI with 

two refinery shutdowns in the year compared to the 

PFI assumption of just one 

• 4Q FY14 shutdown was 22 days longer than 

planned with $4-6m of downside to materialise in 

1Q FY15 

• Refining NZ will improve underlying competitiveness 

through a number of margin improvement projects 

over the next two years ahead of Te Mahi Hou 

being on stream in 2016 

 

 

Gross Refining Margin ($m)  

FX rates and underlying refining margins had a 

material impact on FY14 actuals compared to PFI: 

• Refining margin is -$8m to PFI affecting both EBITDAF 

and NPAT 

• Equity accounted earnings are -$10m to PFI 

affecting NPAT 

Refining margin $m LHS and per barrel margin RHS 

Per  

barrel 
Total $ 
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Strategy projects support momentum 
Programme delivered on time with results consistent with business cases 

FY14 was the final year of the current three year programme 

• New imported product contract started on 1 January 2014 with reduced 

costs of $2m per annum 

• 100 store refits completed in July 2013 with sales tracking to plan 

• Opened five new retail sites (plan of seven) and zero rebuilds (plan of one) 

• “Speed” offers in Retail: stretchy hoses, diesel on all lanes and upgraded 

point of sale operating by December 2013, with pay at pump roll-out due for 

completion in July 2014 

• Retail and Commercial customer satisfaction metrics continue to lead the 

market 

• Continual progress on projects that address Commercial customer 

dissatisfaction, e.g. incorrect invoices down by 90% 

• Truck delivery optimisation benefits realised through further IT investments  

• Closure and decommissioning of Gracefield plant and exit from the 

Chemicals business – plant now being offered to international buyers and 

site being readied for sale as alternative use    

 



10 

Delivering against IPO forecasts 
Pro Forma Results are stated as follows: 

$m 

FY14 

Pro Forma 

Actual 

FY14 

Pro Forma  

Prospective 

FY13 

Pro Forma  

Actual 

Revenue1 3,371   3,548   3,558 

RC gross margin2 500  503   485 

Operating costs (excluding primary 

distribution costs) 
(281)  (296)  (289) 

RC Operating EBITDAF  219   207   196 

Share of earnings in associates (1)   9   6 

RC EBITDAF  218   216   202 

Depreciation and amortisation (39)  (36)  (39) 

Net financing expense (33)  (33)  (39) 

Profit and loss on sale of assets (4) (1) 41 

Other (1)  (1)  4 

Taxation (including tax on COSA) (40)  (39)  (31) 

 

RC NPAT 
 

101 106   138 

1. The results have been reclassified to show total revenue gross with a separate excise and carbon expense. This change has no impact on reported 

profitability 
2. Consistent with half year reporting there has been a presentational change whereby realised and unrealised gains and losses are no longer included 

within purchases, instead they are shown as a separate line within operating costs.  
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Net working capital Cash less short term debt

Cash and Capital funding  

Strong balance sheet 

- Gearing 30% (equity book value $591m) 

- Gearing 13% (market capitalisation of 

$1.56b at 31 March) 

 

Net debt $252m  

- $430m domestic retail bonds, cash on 

hand of $178m 

- Full compliance with debt covenant 

obligations: Total Debt coverage ratio  

2.05x (<3.00), FY13 was 2.18x  

 

Note: Total debt coverage applied in the ratio is calculated as rolling 12 months EBITDAF / Total Debt. Total Debt being defined 

as the sum of Bonds plus MTM derivatives and excludes working capital funding.  

Net working capital is defined as Inventories plus Receivables and Prepayments less Payables, Accruals and Other Liabilities 

 

 

• Closing year end cash position of $178m compares to PFI 

forecast of $146m 

• Lower than planned capital expenditure of $73m compares 

to PFI of $99m  

 

Net working capital and cash balances ($m)  

Strong Balance Sheet with capacity to support future growth 
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Dividend 

• Consistent with the PFI, Z directors have declared a fully 

imputed final dividend of 14.3 cents per share ($57.2m) 

- Record date:  23 May 2014 

- Payment date: 4 June 2014 

• Final dividend is 65% of full year dividend - consistent with PFI 

• Total dividend of 22.0 cps (14.3 cps final and 7.7 cps interim) 

• Full year dividend (interim plus final) equates to a payout ratio 

of 87% of RC NPAT.  

• This reflects strong underlying RC Operating EBITDAF offsetting 

lower equity earnings from Refining NZ 

1. Earnings per share (EPS) has been adjusted in FY13 for one off 

gain relating to retail sale and leaseback programme ($46m) 

 

2. Dividends paid over the FY11-FY14 period also include interest 

paid relating to the reset preference shares and shareholder 

loans 

 

3. Dividends per share (DPS) and EPS calculation assumes issued 

shares of 400 million across the FY11-FY14 period 

Track record of consistent dividend returns already established 

 -

 10

 20

 30

 40
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Interim Final Special EPS
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FY15 guidance 

• Volume growth from full year benefit of FY14 new sites and FY15 programme of four to six new sites and seven 

to nine rebuilds 

• Fuel margins – unwinding of year end inventory valuation, Retail unit margins broadly consistent with 2H, run 

rate of 2014 procurement contract, capex led Retail volume growth, continued Commercial portfolio 

management and the downside of residue exports arising from the recent extended Refining NZ shutdown 

• Non fuel margins – flattening of YoY Tier 1 growth plus extending food and coffee offer into Tier 2 

• Refining margins – similar macro environment to FY14 plus upside from Z/BP/Refining NZ optimisation and 

downside from recent extended Refining NZ shutdown 

• Operating costs grow with volumes and expanded Retail network, inflation of on site costs, and one offs 

associated with Strategy 2.0 set up and execution 

• Capital expenditure includes $20m carryover of FY14 projects and $16m for construction of the Wiri biodiesel 

project  

Key variables FY15 forecast FY14 actual FY13 actual 

RC Operating EBITDAF  $220 - $240m $219m $196m 

Capex $80 - 100m $74m $71m 

Momentum continues from past investments while Strategy 2.0 will have 

immediate impacts on earnings 
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Summarising FY14 

Strong performance across most operational areas 

• 12% growth in RC Operating EBITDAF, equating to 6% above PFI  

• Delivered in a competitive marketing environment, with downside 

from bottom of cycle refining margins further exaggerated by an 

extended shutdown in 4Q 

• Continued optimisation of volume and margin with improved tactical 

execution 

• Continued rollout of Retail and Commercial offers targeted at 

increasing customer satisfaction and loyalty 

• Total dividends of 22 cents per share consistent with PFI  

• Further momentum generated for FY15 through Strategy 2.0, with 

some projects already underway: 

― Revised imported product pricing as of January 2014 

― Supply optimisation with BP and Refining NZ as of April 2014 

― Two new sites and three rebuilds already under construction 

and opening in the first quarter of FY15 

 

 

 

Operational and financial momentum continues 

 



Appendices 
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Financial results 
Basis of Presentation 

Understanding Pro Forma versus Statutory 

• Financial results in this presentation are presented on the same basis1 as the prospectus (on a Pro Forma basis).  This 
differs slightly from the statutory financial statements.  The difference relates to the Pro Forma information being 
prepared as if the listing and all the associated transactions had occurred on 1 April  for each reporting period. 

• The differences relate to: 

- debt funding previously held by related companies being transferred to Z in July 2013 

- The shareholding in Refining NZ previously held by a related company transferred to Z in August 2013 

- The tax effect of the above two transactions 

• See page 126 of the Investment Statement and Prospectus for more details and the additional material in these 
appendices for a reconciliation to the statutory financial statements. 

 

Non-GAAP accounting measure: Replacement Cost (RC) earnings: 

• Is a non-GAAP measure used by the downstream fuel industry to measure and report earnings on a replacement cost 
basis. 

• RC earnings adjusts purchases of crude and product as if the product sold in a month had been purchased in that 
month, rather than the Historical Cost (HC) which reflects the prices at the time of purchase. 

• RC earnings exclude the impact of changes in crude oil and refined product prices on the value of inventory held by Z, 
thus it is a better measure of underlying performance.  

• The difference between HC earnings and RC earnings is the Cost of Sales Adjustment (COSA).  Refer to the 
reconciliation between HC NPAT and RC NPAT in these appendices 

1. Consistent with half year reporting there has been a presentational change whereby realised and unrealised gains and losses are no 

longer included within purchases, instead they are shown as a separate line within operating costs.  
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Statutory Profit and Loss 

$m FY14 FY13   Variance   

Total Revenue1 3,371   3,558 (5%) 

HC gross margin2 489   454   8% 

Operating expenses (excluding 

primary distribution expenses) 
(281)  (289)  3% 

HC Operating EBITDAF  208   165   26% 

Share of earnings in associates (5)  -  <> 

HC EBITDAF  203   165   23% 

Depreciation and amortisation (39)  (39)  - 

Net financing expense (25)  3   <> 

Profit and loss on sale of assets (4) 41 <> 

Other (1)  -  <> 

Taxation (39)  (33)  (18%) 

HC NPAT 95 137   (31%) 

 

1. The results have been reclassified to show total revenue gross with a separate excise and carbon expense. This change 

has no impact upon reported profitability. 
2. Consistent with half year reporting there has been a presentational change whereby realised and unrealised gains and 

losses are no longer included within purchases, instead they are shown as a separate line within operating costs.  
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Pro Forma Profit and Loss 

$m FY14 FY13   Variance   

Total Revenue 3,371   3,558   (5%) 

RC gross margin 500   485   3% 

Operating expenses (excluding 

primary distribution expenses) 
(281)  (289)  3% 

RC Operating EBITDAF  219   196   12% 

Share of earnings in associates (1)  6   <> 

RC EBITDAF  218   202   8% 

Depreciation and amortisation (39)  (39)  - 

Net financing expense (33)  (39)  15% 

Profit and loss on sale of assets (4) 41 <> 

Other (1)  4 <> 

Taxation (37)  (22)  (68%) 

Tax on COSA (3)   (9)  67% 

RC NPAT 101 138   (27%) 

FY14 Reconciliation from statutory HC NPAT to Pro Forma RC NPAT 

HC NPAT per the statutory financial statements 95 

Share of earnings in Refining NZ from 1 April to 18 August 2013 4 

Net financing expense from 1 April to 4 July 2013 (8) 

Replacement cost of sales adjustment (net of tax) 8 

Taxation 2 

Pro Forma RC NPAT 101 



Appendix 1 (NZX Listing Rule 10.4.1) 
Preliminary Announcement – Full Year Results 

 

3 Queens Wharf 
PO Box 2091 
Wellington 6140 
New Zealand 

0800 474 355 
z.co.nz 

Appendix 1 

1. Full year reporting periods 

Reporting period:     twelve months to 31 March 2014 

Previous reporting period:    twelve months to 31 March 2013 

2. Results for announcement to the market 

 
Twelve months to  

31 March 2014 
(NZ $m) 

Percentage change 

Operational results   

Revenues from ordinary activities 3,371 (5)% 
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities after tax 
attributable to security holders 95 (31)% 

Net profit (loss) attributable to security holders 95 (31)% 

 
 Amount per security  

(NZ cents) 
Imputed amounts per 

security (NZ cents) 
Dividends – Ordinary shares   

Final dividend 14.3 5.5611 

   

   

Record date  23 May 2014 

Payment date  4 June 2014 

Financial information and commentary 

For commentary on the results please refer to the media announcement and management commentary. 

Appendix 1 should be read in conjunction with the group financial statements for the year ended 31 March 

2014 attached. 

3. Net tangible assets per security 

 31 March 2014 
(NZ cents) 

31 March 2013 
(NZ cents) 

Net tangible assets per security  67 132 
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0800 474 355 
z.co.nz 

4. Control of entities gained or lost during the period 

On 1 April 2013 Mini Fuels & Oils Limited amalgamated into Z Energy Limited. Mini Fuels and Oils Limited 

was previously a 100% owned subsidiary and since amalgamation it is now a division of Z Energy Limited. 

5. Dividends 

As per point 2 and Appendix 7 attached. 

6. Dividend or distribution reinvestment plans 

Nil 

7. Associates and joint ventures 

Details of our associates and joint ventures are highlighted in the financial statement notes. 

8. Accounting standards 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice ('NZ GAAP') and the Financial Reporting Act 1993.  They comply with the NZ 

equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ('NZ IFRS') as appropriate for profit-oriented 

entities, and with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'). 

9. Audit 

This report is based on the audited group financial statements. KPMG has provided an Audit report on the 

financial statements which is attached. 

 

 

 



Appendix 4E (ASX Listing Rule 4.3A) 
Preliminary final report 
ARBN 164 438 448 

 

3 Queens Wharf 
PO Box 2091 
Wellington 6140 
New Zealand 

0800 474 355 
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Appendix 4E 

1. Full year reporting periods 

Reporting period:     twelve months to 31 March 2014 

Previous reporting period:    twelve months to 31 March 2013 

2. Results for announcement to the market 

 
Twelve months to  

31 March 2014 
(NZ $m) 

Percentage change 

Operational results   

Revenues from ordinary activities 3,371 (5)% 
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities after tax 
attributable to members 95 (31)% 

Net profit (loss) attributable to members 95 (31)% 

 
 Amount per security  

(NZ cents) 
Franked amounts per 

security (NZ cents) 
Dividends – Ordinary shares   

Final dividend (not franked) 14.3 Not franked 

   

   

Record date  23 May 2014 

Payment date  4 June 2014 

Financial information and commentary 

For commentary on the results please refer to the media announcement and management commentary. 

Appendix 4E should be read in conjunction with the group financial statements for the year ended 31 

March 2014 attached. 

3. Net tangible assets per security 

 31 March 2014 
(NZ cents) 

31 March 2013 
(NZ cents) 

Net tangible assets per security  67 132 
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4. Control of Entities gained or lost during the period 

On 1 April 2013 Mini Fuels & Oils Limited amalgamated into Z Energy Limited. Mini Fuels and Oils Limited 

was previously a 100% owned subsidiary and since amalgamation it is now a division of Z Energy Limited. 

5. Dividends 

As per point 2 and Appendix 7 attached. 

6. Dividend or distribution reinvestment plans 

Nil 

7. Associates and joint venture 

Details of our associates and joint ventures are highlighted in the financial statement notes. 

8. Accounting standards 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice ('NZ GAAP') and the Financial Reporting Act 1993.  They comply with the NZ 

equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ('NZ IFRS') as appropriate for profit-oriented 

entities, and with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS'). 

9. Audit 

This report is based on the audited group financial statements. KPMG has provided an Audit report on the 

financial statements which is attached. 
 
 



APPENDIX 7 – NZSX Listing Rules

Number of pages including this one
(Please provide any other relevant

NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.2. For rights, NZSX Listing Rules 7.10.9 and 7.10.10. details on additional pages)
For change to allotment, NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.1, a separate advice is required.

Full name
of Issuer

Name of officer authorised to Authority for event,
make this notice e.g. Directors' resolution

Contact phone Contact fax
number number Date

Nature of event Bonus If ticked, Rights Issue
Tick as appropriate Issue state whether: Taxable / Non Taxable Conversion Interest Renouncable

Rights Issue Capital Call Dividend If ticked, state Full
non-renouncable change  whether: Interim Year  Special DRP Applies

EXISTING securities affected by this If more than one security is affected by the event, use a separate form.

Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Details of securities issued pursuant to this event If more than one class of security is to be issued, use a separate form for each class.

Description of the ISIN
class of securities

If unknown, contact NZX

Number of Securities to Minimum Ratio, e.g
be issued following event Entitlement   1   for    2   for

Conversion, Maturity, Call Treatment of Fractions
Payable or Exercise Date

Tick if provide an
pari passu OR explanation

Strike price per security for any issue in lieu or date of the
Strike Price available. ranking

Monies Associated with Event Dividend payable, Call payable, Exercise price, Conversion price, Redemption price, Application money.

Source of
Amount per security Payment
(does not include any excluded income)

Excluded income per security
(only applicable to listed PIEs)

Supplementary Amount per security
Currency dividend in dollars and cents

details -
NZSX Listing Rule 7.12.7

Total monies

Taxation Amount per Security in Dollars and cents to six decimal places

In the case of a taxable bonus Resident Imputation Credits
issue state strike price Withholding Tax (Give details)

Foreign FDP Credits
Withholding Tax (Give details)

Timing (Refer Appendix 8 in the NZSX Listing Rules)

Record Date 5pm Application Date
For calculation of entitlements - Also, Call Payable, Dividend /

Interest Payable, Exercise Date,
Conversion Date. In the case
of applications this must be the
last business day of the week.

Notice Date Allotment Date
Entitlement letters, call notices, For the issue of new securities.
conversion notices mailed Must be within 5 business days

of application closing date.

OFFICE USE ONLY
Ex Date:
Commence Quoting Rights: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Rights 5pm:
Commence Quoting New Securities: Security Code:
Cease Quoting Old Security 5pm:

EMAIL: announce@nzx.com

Notice of event affecting securities
1

Z Energy Limited

Chris Day Directors' resolution

+64 4 462 4620 7 5 2014

Ordinary Shares NZZELE0001S1

In dollars and cents

Retained Earnings
$0.143

Enter N/A if not 
applicable

$ $0.009931 $0.055611

$

NZ Dollars $0.025350

$57,200,000 Date Payable 4 June, 2014

23 May, 2014 4 June, 2014
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